Health and Safety Commission annual report and the Health and Safety
Commission/executive accounts,

Contributors

Great Britain. Health and Safety Commission
Great Britain. Health and Safety Executive

Publication/Creation
London : Stationery Office, 2009

Persistent URL

https://wellcomecollection.org/works/waqvuay3

License and attribution

You have permission to make copies of this work under a Creative Commons,
Attribution license.

This licence permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction in any
medium, provided the original author and source are credited. See the Legal
Code for further information.

Image source should be attributed as specified in the full catalogue record. If
no source is given the image should be attributed to Wellcome Collection.

Wellcome Collection

183 Euston Road

London NW1 2BE UK

T +44 (0)20 7611 8722

E library@wellcomecollection.org
https://wellcomecollection.org



http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/
http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/legalcode
http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/legalcode

Health and Safety Executive

Annual Report
nd ACCOUNLS 2008/09




225304 4283




Health and Safety Executive

Annual F%eport
and ACCOUNTS 200s/09

Presented o Pariiament by the Secratary of State pursuant to the following provisions of tha
Heafih and Safety at Weark ete Act 1974: saction 1002} and paragraph 1044) of Schedule 2; and
by the Comgitroller and Auditor General pursuant 1o saction 10(2) of, and paragraph 10(2) of

Schadule 2 to, thal Acl.

Owdered by the House of Commons to be printed 2 July 2009,

"':'D"CINE L= u.'-u wa__ | i‘a

HC580 London: The Stationery Office

] WELLCUME l

Ii,"‘ln 1|“r

e OO i
i Wi G

Gratis












Health and Safety Executive Annual Report 2008/09




HSE Annal Bepor 200809

Foreword by HSE’s Chair and Chief

Executive

n 1 April 2008, the Health
0 and Safaty Executive (HSE)

and the Health and Safety
Commission (HSC) mergad to form a
single reguiatory body, retaining the
HSE title, wilth the overall purpose of tha
prevention of death, injury and ¥l health
to those at work and those affected by
wiork activities in Great Britadn.

This is the first Annual Report since
the merger and it summarnises the 'new’
HSE's parformance during 2008/09,
together with the valued work that we
unciertake in partnership with local
authorities, tracle unions, other parts of
government and other public and private
sacior stakehoiders, We recognise
that during he year unprecedented
BCONOMIC Crcumstances have emerged
which ingvitably create significant
pressirs on organsations 10 reduce
costs. It is, therefore, essential that
health and safety remains high on
the agenda as a driver of businass
benefit not a cost or ‘burden’. While
HSE and local authority colleagues
are key 1o influencing improved health
and safety outcomes, the prime factor
which govemns whather there are
tatalities, injuries or il health at work
is the motivation and pedormance of
amployars,

Extending recognition and
accaptance of this, in the contaxt of the
current economic climate, is the key
challenge facing Great Britain's heailth
and safety system, We still have one of
the best health and safety records in the
world, but in recent years improvement
has slowed and the momeanturm neads
o be regained. The bottom line |s that
in 2007/08 (the latest statistics) 229
people died at work, over 28 000 people
were seriously injured and over 2 million
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it is essential that health
and safety remains

high on the agenda as a
driver of business benefit
not a cost or ‘burden’

people suffered linesses caused or
macde worse by work,

So, how has HSE responded? One
of the first actions of the new Board was
to consult our stakeholders on a new
strategy The Health and Safely of Great
Britain: Be part of the solution. Following
consultation, the new strategy was
published on 3 Jure 2009 and its aim
i5 to resat and reaffirm the direction of
health and safety, acting as the catalyst
to ragain momentum for improved
health and safety outcomes referred to
above, We will report progress against
this new strategy in next year's Annual
Report. The context for this Annual
Report is the pravious strategy, HSC's
Strateqy for workplace health and safety
in Great Britain fo 2070 and bevond.

HSE continues to move towards a
changed organisational structure, unified
in a single Merseyside headguarters at
the heart of a successil and moderm
national organisation: one betler able
to support delvery of the new HSE
strategy and which is more efficient
— particularty important in the current
fiscal ernaronment. These changes have
been managed through our *How and
Whare We Work' Programme. This is a
major project, the key elemeant of which
will be complate in March 2010, It will
result in overall savings of approsmately
£5 million per year, The transition has
strengthenead our organisation by
remaving geographical obstacles to

enable greater visibility of HSE's sanior
managament team and better working
together betwean staff at all levels. A
small baze office is being astablished
in Westminster so that we can maintain
our stakeholder contact in the capital.
Tuming to key operational
achievements the main body of the
report identifies some of our key
achievements. Examples of these
inciuca:
¥ our work with chief execulive officers
in the nuckear industry and offshore
and onshore oil and gas sectors to
promote process safety keadership;
»  continuing to raise public awareness
of health and safety issues in key
sectors such as construction and
farms, il-health issues (eq asbestos
and dermatitis), plus hazards such
as slips, tips and falls from height,
builcling on all we hawve leamed
from our previous communications
CcAmpaigns,
While HSE uses a range of influencing
techniques and intervantions, when
it i5 clear that fallure 1o comply with
workplace health and safety regulations
may put he lives of others at nsk we
have taken — and will continue to take -
enforcemant action. Based on the latest
statistics for 2007/08, HSE issued 7715
enforcemeant notices and prosecuted
1137 employvers. Thosa organisations
found guilty were fined £10 812 475
for breaching health and safety law.
Investigation and, ultimately, prosecution
not only secures justice but is also vital
if we are to leam from events and share
the knowladge 1o prevent recLmance in
similar circumstancas.
200809 saw HSE conclude a
successiul merger with the Pesticides
Safety Directorate, strengthening



our role in pesticides regulation. We
alzo tock on the roka as regulator for
animal pathogens in England and
Wales - combined with our existing
responsibilities for human pathogens.

HSE iz committed to reducing tha
level of administration associated with
health and safety reguiation. This year,
we published our third Simgplification Plan
1o deliver 'better regulation’ by showing
hory to reduce the level of paperwork but
not the level of protecton.

Feadback from cur stakeholders tells
us that the majonty value HSE's work
highly. We hawve, however, incréased our
activity to counter inaccurate and often
misleading claims in some sections of
the media about alleged overzealous
health and safety regulation by
successiuly promoting our massage of
a sensible and proportionate approach
o risk management.

Through their support and inspection
activities, our local authority partners
have made a significant contrbution 1o
key aspects of our work,

The scope of HSE's achievernents is
much wider than those summansad in
this Report. We wish to thank the HSE
Board members for their support and
our staff for their continued commitment,
professionalizm and high levels of
expertise - delivered against a backdrop
of an especially challenging year for
many, where major organisational
change continued to impact on the
way that we all works, We bealieve that
HSE can be proud of its contribution to
improving haalth and safaty oulcomes,
but we are very aware, for the reasons
outlined above and explained more fulky
in this report, that key challenges remain
for all stakeholders in the health and
safety system,
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Industry and the workforce have

changed over the years, witha growth in

NBZArcouS INCIUSINES SUCh as recycing

and waste managemant. We also have

more small businasses and a more

diverse workforce, This necessitates

new approaches to managing risks

but within a regulatory framework

that remains fit for purpose. Our task,

thereforg, is 1o find new, effective and

inncvative ways to engage cument and

future workforces to:

¥ reduce the number of work-refated
injuries and cases of il healih;

¥ gan widespread commitment and

Judith Hackitt CBE
Chair
Health and Safety Executie

recognimon of what real health and
safety is about;

7 motvate all those in the naalth and
safely system as 1o how they can
contribute 1o an improved haalth and
safely performance; and

» ensure that those who fail in their
healih and safaty duties are held to
acoount.

We balieva 1hat the waork ocutlined in

thiz report and the publication of our

new strategy puts us on the nght track

to achieving these aims and we ook
foraard to reporting Our progress in it
year's report.

Geoffrey Podger CB
Chiaf Exacilive
Health and Safety Exacutiva
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About us

he Health and Safaty HSE’s Board
Exacutiva's (HSE) primary
function is to secure the health,
safety and welfare of people at work
and protect others from risks to health
and safety from work activity. We are
responsible for regulating health and
safety in Great Britain and work in
partnarship with local authonties. HSE
seaks fo
} influence people and organisations
— dutyhwolders and stakeholders = 1o
embrace high standards of health
and safety;
¥ promote the banelits of employers
and workers working together to
manage health and safety sensibly;
and
¢ investigate incicdents, enguinginto
complaints about health and safaty
practices and enforce the law.
HSE reguiates health and safety
across a range of sectors and
INAUsInes Inciuding mapor hazard
gites such as nuclear installations,
offshore gas and oil installations and
anshore chermical plants through to
more conventional workplaces ke
construction sites, quames, factonas,
farms, waste management sites and
hospitals. We do this by targeting our
resouwrces 1o pronty risks and seclors
and applying an appropnate mix of
intervention and influencing tachniques
such as inspection, communication,
advice and support and where
necessary enforcement action, MSE
also devetops new or revisad health
and salety legiskation and codes of
praclice, Sponsors research and Danny Carrigan OBE Robin Dahlberg
promotes training. Local authorities are
responsible for reguiating offices, shops
and other parts of the servicas sector. Biographies for each of the Board members are on our website at:
Both regulators are respansible for wnw, hse,gov,uk/aboutus/hseboard.
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| g : Ll we are responsible for
Judith Donovan CBE Sandy Blair CBE regulating health and
safety in Great Britain
and work in partnership
with local authorilies

many other aspects of the protestion
both of workers and the public.

Health and safety matters dealt
with by HSE have not been devohed
to the administrations in Scotland
and Wales. Effectve working
arrangements have been developed,
howewver, batwesn HSE and the
devoived administrations 1o ensure that
areas of 'common and close interest’
are managed appropriately. Whers
necessary, such areas are underpinned
by ‘concordats’ which set out
any arrangements 1or consultation,
information giving and joint
working, These can be accessad
at woanw, hise.gov, uk/aboutus/
howwerworkframeworksF- 2001 -3 htm,

HSE is a non-departmental pubilic
body with Crown status, sponsored by
the Depariment for Work and Pensions
(CWVF) and i accountabde 1o
¥ the Rt Hon Yvette Cooper MP,

Secretary of State for Work and

Pensions; and
» Lord McKenzie of Luton OBE,

Farliamentary Under Secretary (for

Work and Pensiong) (Lords).

For more infommation; see the
: , - y Management Commentary (pages
Elizabeth Snape MBE John Spanawick CBE 32-38) or www.hse.gov.Lk,

You can get a copy of the register of interests relating to members of the Board and the Chief Exacutive by contacting HSE
Infoling at hse.infolined@natbit.com, or by phoning 0845 345 0055, Monday-Friday between 8:30 and 18:00.
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HSE's structure and Senior Management Team (year ending 31 March 2009)




The strategic framework
Our mission up to 2008/09 was,
working with local authorties, to protect
people’s health and satety by ensuring
that risks in the changing workplace

are propery controlled. Our vision was

to gain recognition of health and safety

and, with that, acheeve a record of
workplace haalth and safety that leads
the world,

Before the publication of HSE s new
Strategy” in June 2009, HSC's Strategy
for workplace heailth and safely to 20010
and beyond [www_hse.gov.ulk/aboutius!
strategiesandplans/strategy.him) set
out the strategic direction for delivenng
health and safety improvemeants in Great
Eritain. The Strategy’s four key themes
were:

1 Developing closer partnerships.

2 Helping people to benefit from
effective health and safety
management and a sensible
health and safety culture.

3 [Focusing on our core business
and the right interventions where
wa are best placed to reduce
workplace injury and ill health.

4 Communicating the vision.

It iz mportant o make sure that we

fulfil the functions set out in the Haalth

and Safety at Work atc Act 1974 (zee

page 32) and that we can account for

the use of both our statutony powers

and the pubkc funds we recene. We

are reporting against four key business

areas, which cover the full scope of our

wiork, These are;

» Delivering health and safety
outcomes;

¥ Enabling justice;

» Providing support to government;
and

¥  Demonstrating public
accountability.

Each business area contributes

towards our mission, themes and

the targets govermment has set. Our

corporate support funcbons nclude

communications, science, research,

and financial and human resources

management enabling delivery within the

business areas.

* The Haalth and Safely of Greal Britain: Be part of the solution. The strategy includes & rew
HSE mission: ‘the prevention of death, infury andill health to those at work and those affected
by work acthvilies”. See www. hse.gov.ulstralegy.
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This report summanses our
performance against the objectives and
key itarns of work in the HSE Busingss
Plan 2008/09 (www. hse. gov.ulkaboulus’
strategiesandplans/bpland809 . pdf). It
also includes a brief “Looking forward'
section for sach business area which
identifies some of the key objectives for
200910, Further detail can be found in
the HSE Business Fian 2009/ 10 (www.,
hee gov.uk/aboutus/sirategiesandplans’
bplan(s1 0.pdi).

The chart on page 6 shows how
HSE was organised in 2008/09 to
dediver the objeciives in these business
areas together with our corporate
support functions.
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Targets for work-related health
and safety

In 2000, HSC and the govemment published
the Rewitalising Health and Safety (RHS) strategy
{waww.hse gov.uk/revitalising/strategy.him).

Thiz included three national targets to improve
occupational health and safety ocutcomes by
2010 (see Table 1),

Table 1 Revitalising Health and Safety targets

Targets Rasults Latest

Basslines (2008/10) (2007./08) assessment

The incidence rate of fatal and major injury 1173 105.6 106.6 On track
per 100 000 workars (1998/2000) (10% reduction) (9% reduction)

The incidence rate of work-related ill haalth 2190 1750 1 860 Probabity not

par 100 000 workers {2001/02) (20% reduction]  (15% reduction) on track

The number of working days lost from 1.76 1.23 1.41 Probably not

wiork-redated injury and il health per worker (2000-02)  (30% reduction) (20% reduction) on track

HEE wil pubish 2008409 results for these ndicalors i Octobear 2008

Az part of Spending Review 2004, DWP
agread a new work-related health and safety
Public Service Agreement (PSA) with HM
Treasury to: ‘improve health and safety outcomes
in Great Britain through progressive improvement
in the control of risks in the workplace' by 2008.

We measured our progress towards the PSA
against six targets, grouped under the two main
areas of HSE's work: occupational health and
salety, and major hazards. The occupational
health and safety PSA targets were based on the
same indicators as the RHS targets, but worked
from a different baseline year, They represented
a three-year siice of the full ten-year targels. The
major hazards PSA targets measure precursor
incidents’ - events in the major hazard industries
with the potential to develop into a catastrophic
accident.

The P5SA’s fingl assessment confirmed that
the sub-targets for injunies, and nuclear and
anshore precursor incidents had baen met
and bettered; thosa for working days lost and
offshare precursor incidents, wihile not met, had
shown improvemant; and il health was 'not met’
and had not movedin a favourable direction
over the retatively short PSA period. The overall
FSA rating had to be considered “not met’ solely
becausa of the performance of the occupational
il health target,



Table 2 PSA targets for occupational health and safety and major hazards
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Baselines Target Results
PSAtargets Indicator ('ear) (2007 /08) [2007/08)  Final assessment
Occupational  The incidence rate of fatal and 118.6 115.0 106.6  Met and bettered
health and major injury par 100 000 employvees (2004/05) 3% reduction])  (10% reduction)
safety
The incidence rate of work-related 1 850 1740 1 860 Mot mat
ill haalth per 100 000 workers (2004/05) (6% reduction]  (0.5% increase)
The number of working days lost from 1.53 1.39 1.41 Frobabky not met
werk-redated injury and il health (2004/05) (9% reduction) (8% reduction) {but moving in a
per worker favourable direction)
Major The number of events reported by 143 132 108 Met and betterad
hazards licence holders that HSE's Muclear (2001/02) (7.5% reduction) (24.5% reduction)
Installations Inspectorate judges
as hawing the potential to challenge
& nuclear safety system
The number of major and significant 113 62 i Not met
hydrocarbon releases in the offshore (2001/02) (5% reduction]  (34% reduction) fbut moving in a
oil and gas sector favourable direction)
The number of relevant RIDDOR? 178 152 108 Met and bettared

reporiable dangerous occurrences in
the onshore sector

(2001/02) (15% reduction)  (39% reduction)

8 Reporting of fnjurigs, Drseases and Dangarous Ooourmances Raguiahions.

Frorn 1 April 2008, the PSA was replaced

by a new Deparimental Strategic Objective 3
(DS0G), which is to improve health and
safety outcomaes in Great Britain, through
progressive improvement in the control of
work-related risks'.

D503 comprises five indicators (see Table 3)
which share the RHS and orginal PSA baselines,
Health and safety perormance and the impact
af our interventions is batter measured over the
langer tenm and as with DWPR's ather DS0s,
progress on DS03 will be jedged in tenms of
direction of travel in the indicators, The injury and
il-health indicators (based on the latest validated
and published data at 2007/08) are both on track.






Performance during 200000

Delivering
health and safety outcomes

Objectives

...to deliver improved health, safety and welfare outcomes
for those in, or otherwise affected by, work:

> to ensure appropriate protection to people from health
and safety risks

to influence people and organisations — dutyholders
and stakeholders - to embrace and promaote high

standards of health and safety

Fit for Work, Fit for Life,

Fit for Tomorrow (Fit3)

HSE's Fit3 programme closed at the end of
March 2009 after four challenging years. Fit3
brought together palicy, operational, scientific
and communications spacialists from across
HSE, along with local authority colleagues and
other key pariners. into a single programmse
focused on making sustained improvements
in the numbers of people injured or made

il by work activity. It delvered a range of
targeted interventions — mcluding inspection,
communications, stakeholder engagement and
enforcement - focused on key hazards and
industry sactors.

Owver the lazst three years we have zeen
worthwhile and real improvemants in workplace
health and safety:
¥ the PSA target to reduce the fatal and major
injury incidenca rate has been met and
bettered [with & 10% reduction comparad
to the 3% target batween 200405 and
2007/08) and thera are encouraging trends of
falling injury rates in most sectors;
thera have been reductions in fatal and major
injuries from falls from height (179%) and
workplace fransport (10%), but there has

been litthe change in the number of injuries Ihfﬁ'f'{i

from slipping and tripping, which remains the

most common (amost 40%) cause of major hf"ﬂﬂ been
injury — we are addressing this through HSE's f'ﬁd{{f*ﬂf”ﬂ.‘i
‘Shatterad Lives' campaign; it

although the PSA target to reduce the in fatal
incidence rate of work-related il health by Irz”d -"Hﬂfﬁf'
6% betwean 200405 and 2007/08 was S .

not met, strong partnership: networks were HIHH'I{?\"TJI'I!'HH-
cdevetoped with initiathves delivered within J{I-hlﬁ‘j??}f”

stakeholders’ own industries plus inspection
and enforcement by both HSE and local
authorities;

the PSA target to reduce the number of
working days losi per worker due to work-
related injury or il health (a 9% reduction)
has probably not been mat. Wark with
government partners continues with the aim
to impact on wider areas of health, work and
well-Deing;

the incidence rate of stress was slghtly down
on 2006/07 levels (and similar to those in
200405 and 2001502}, whike the rate for
musculoskelstal disordars was down on
2006/07, about the same as that for 2004/05
but significantly lower than that for 2001/02.

height and
workplace
transpori

1
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Key achievements

Working with local authorities, we built

on the success of Ladder Exchange 2007
with a further exercise in 2008 to raise ladder
safety awareness. With the help of the Ladder
e o hira G

fm Er

b 5000 broken and

MESSOCEA DN G

05

o I X 3
who offered discounts, up

damaged ladders wera replaced in a bid to
reduce the numiber of falls from haghts

In partnarship with local authornty inspectors,
we carried out a targeted inspection
campaign in North Humberside, The

programme of concentrated visits focused
on topics including workplace transport and

glips, trips and falls, and was publicised kocally
» awarenass of the key issues.

chions were camed out and formal

s of the initative was that it
mprove partnership

aetors 10 leam rom each

ather's approaches.

There is continued evidence that our work
to promote worker engagement in the
construction industry is having a positive
effact on health and safety, with major

coniractors nom

2Eing worker engagement

gir strategies 1o improve health

andards on site. For example one

construction grol nted

| dents or
ncidents in over 80% of the group's projects
mportantly they
igement initiatives
have made a mapor contribution o this level of
performance’.

that thare had been no reporte

during the past 12 montl

added that tha ‘wo

We worked closely with the Strategic Forum
for Construction to produce guidance on
tower crane operators’ working conditions

and 1he usa, INSpaclion, mantenance and
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Asbestos - every week 20
tradesmen die from this
‘hidden killer'...

Eveary year mora paopla die from past
axposure 10 asbestos than in road
accidents. Last year we reported
an our pilot meadia campaign amed
at rasing the awara of ganaral
tradesmean, plumbers and elactriclans
to the potential nsk of warking
an buildings that might contain
5. To build on this wa ran a

and Novamber 2
targetl group to include joinars.

HSE worked in partnership with

TUC, trade

sociations

King and
his son. Having worked in the building
trade as a tee

to act as a spokesparson for this
cause and was vary supportiva of the
campaign.

Dwuring the promotion there
wara 17 nalional and regional TV
broadcasts, including interviews on
GMTV and BBC news. 23 radws and
print pieces ran nationally and 156
ran regionally, with personal stones
from meésothelioma sufferers and
thair families used for impact.
The campaign genarated
5 intarast with ovar
distributed

tremeando
600 000 information packs
plus a substantal incre

AWaAreness,
al authorty
ff continue to maintain
or the duty to o




thorough examination of tower cranes. As
part of the Safe Crane Campaign, we also
developed a website 1o provide information to
the public.

The incidence of contact dermatitis cases
shows a significant reduction, from a total

of 8400 incidences reported in 2004/05 to
BE00 in 200708 (the latest year available), with
strong stakeholder partnershups forged by HSE
and local authorities (2g with the Hairdressing
and Beauty Industry Authority, City and Guilds,
and the Leaming and Skills Councils) being a
key factor,

We continued to work with public sector
organisations to encourage and help them
to implement the latest Stress Management
Standards, while local authorities helped
arganisations within the finance sector, Early
results suggest that those organisations visited
are making batter progress than othars, with
one major governmeant department now using
focus groups to discuss stress solutions

with its staff. HSE also co-operated with the
Trades Union Congress (TUG) to deliver two
succassiul workshops on siress for trade union

representativas.

In partnership with the Welsh Assembly
Government, we piloted an advice and
information service to small and meadium
enterprises (SMEs) in Wales. ‘Workboost
Wales' provided advice to SMEs through a
telephone enguiry line and advisor visits. To
date, Workboost Wales has completed around
950 visits (including follow-up visits, addrassing
topics such as absence management and
stress). The pilot ended in March 2009 and
formal evaluation will follow; anecdotally, the
senvice has met business needs and levels of
customer satistaction are high.

Perfomance dunng 200808

Promoting the benefits of
sensible health and safety
management and worker
involvement

HSE recognises that greater improvements
in health and safety outcomes are possible if
businesses believe in the benefits of managing
health and safety effectvaly and worlers are
actively involved. We encourage employers
and workers to work togather to manage
health and safety sensibly.

Successtul invohvement of al businessas
flarge or small is fundamental 1o HSE's
success, This year we worked with employers
o concantrate in particular on the need for
businesses to ensure that heatth and safety is
led from the top of the organisation, and that
wirkers ara fully invohed.

Key achievements

We continued to promote and embed the
joint Institute of Directors/HSE leadership
guidance for directors and board members.
Research conducted nine months after the
launch showed raised awareness of 25%
among the target audience (in organisations
with five or more employvess in the pubiic,
private and third seciors).

We developed and launched a suite of new
and revised guidance on worker involvement
and consultation, including examples of good
praclice focusing on how to consult and invobe
employees, revised legal guidance and a free
leafist largeting SMES. The guidance was
devetoped in consultation with stakeholders,
expert practitioners and the Small Business
Tracke Association Forum and was launched at
the Waorker Irviolvement in Health and Safety
conference. We also improved HSE's Worker
imvolernent waebsite, making the guidance mare
accessible to businesses.



Together with Local Authorities Coordinators
of Regulatory Services (LACORS), we
completed the Large Organisation
Partnership Pilot (LOPF). An independeant
revieay of thie pilal chrenss Oul 1he BES5S0NS [Sarmed,

which were shared with the LOFPP community

s

at its nal plenary meeting, &g 'no one si2e

all’, rathear, a 1oke approach 1o developang

partnerships with large Organisanons 5 assential,

Wrk is ongoing to assimilate these into wickes
development on leadership in line with the

mplemeantation of the new HSE strateqy

Communication

HSEs Commumcations Programmes includes our
pubic and meda retations operations, stakenoider
engagemeant, campaign management, events,
onling products and senicas, publications, and
nternal communications channels, Our aim is to
promote the banefits of common-sensea health
and safety managemeant and engandar confidence
i HSE internalhy and extarmally,

The programme supported the launch of the
strategy consuliation in partnership with LACORS
with a senes of regional workshops seaking

Reducing barriers and administrative
costs for businesses

HSE embarked on a campaign to help small

= TR IMErove thair app h to health and

sk managemeant. Work b

Through the
a 'good enough' risk

Strated what
t might look like
0 example risk assessments

ctors, The exampl

aim was to demystify
allowing businesses
egsments with

ample ssments have pro
id feadback has been positive;

of SMEs rated
& pxamples excallent to good, 9
nfirmed that they saved time conducting their

th an average time saving

and 80% would recommend them to

others. Based on this work HSE was successful at
reaching the final stage in the Mational Businass

Awards' Batter Regulation category.
The example risk assassments can ba found

at www hse.g ukdriskfcasestudies.




support and involverment from all stakehotdars
inworkplace haalth and safety in delivering tha
strateqy’s goals (see atso page 24),

W continued to make good progress in
challenging and distancing HSE from stones that
triviglise heatth and safety, including the launch
of the Myth of the month e-calendar digpelling
health and safety myths, However, we have mong
work to do in communicating the benefits of a
COMMOon-sense approach 1o health and safety,
particularty in how wa inform and engage with
smaller businessas to motivate them and build
their confidence to manage their health and
safety sensibly and proportionately.

Key achievements

In addition to the ‘Hidden Killer’ and ‘Shattered

Lives' initiatives (see pages 12 and 16) we

used campaigns to raise public awareness to

other health and safety issues including:

¥ making property developers aware of the
legal requirermnents and their health and
safety responsibilities as clients under the
Construction (Design and Managameni)
Regulations 2007. The campaign, launchad
in February, was supporied by an intensive
inspection nitiative in March 2009 targeting
the refurbishment sactor, The rasults will be
assessad in 200810,

¥ the ‘Makea the promise. Come home
sale’ campaign aimed at the agnculiural
sactor. Agricutture remains one of ihe most
dangerols sectors with ahigh level of fatalties
at around 40 per year. The campaign was
launched in Decembar 2008, highlighting
Ihe: risks associated with farming. 70 000
mailshots wera sant to fanmers inviting them to
respond to receive a free guidance booklel. To
date, approximately 7000 have replied to this
initiative, confirming that the farming industry
remaing at risk and hard 1o engage.

Poriorrnancs during 200800

We continued to explore innovative ways

to promote the benefits of common-sense
health and safety to businesses. Wea used
vanious communication channals including

TV, radko, web, publications, conferences and
avents in our campaign management. One of
our ashestos campaign adverls was nominated
for a prestigious advertising award. Continued
davelopment of HSE's website resulted in over
20 milion visits, use of podcasts, newsfeads and
text messaging; plus subscriptions to our free
a-bullatin serice doubled over the reporiing year
to 221 000.

We took a proactive approach to public
relations and developing third-party
advocates. Our strategic engagement
programme focused on working with local
authonhes, partners (the Institution of
Ocoupational Safety and Health, the Royal
Society for the Prevention of Accidents, and
EEF (the manufacturers’ organssation)) and
businesses who continue to speak in defence of
the 'health and safety’ brand,

our aim is to promote the
benefils of comumon-sense
health and safety
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Watch your STEP - with phase 2 of
HSE's ‘Shattered Lives' campaign

Slips, trips and falls are the major cause of
workplace injury = latest igures réveal that 238%

of major injuries are caused by a slip, trip or fall.
HSE has run several campagns over the years
culminating in last year's “Shattered Lives' initiative,
which was the most successful to date in terms

of prompting more than 800 000 people to visit

our wabsite for further information. In 2008/08, we
built on the success of phase 1 of the campaign to
devalop and promote two computensed a-leaming
packages: the slips and trips alactronic programme
[STEP) and a waork at height access nformation ool
[WAIT) on accass equipment salaty.

The second phase of the campaign was aimed
largaly at thosa industnes targeted by phase 12
construction, catering and hospitality, building
and plant maintenance, food retail, and food and
drink manufaciuring = plus two additional sectors
whaere improvemant is required: health services and
education.

We publicised phase 2 via the national press
as well as onling, using tradeé press 1o promote
an eco-disk carrying a condensed version of the
STEP tool with a link to the full product on the
website. The regional press publicity supported a
construction inspection initiative in March 2000, As
tha campaign is a long-tarm commitment towards
bBehaviour change it is too early to repon on its
impact. Howeaver, significant interest has been
shown via visits to our website, and anecdotal
avidence suggests that businesses have taken the
message on board and will act on it.

Tha “Shattered Lives' visual concept and
message continue to resonate with audiences
and attract favourable reaction. it won several
prestigious advertising awards for best campaign
and use of photography and has been featured in
numerous trade journals, Sea www hse gov.ulf
falls/shatteredlives.him.



Local authority partnerships

One of HSE's main objectives is to stimulate and
support delivery of improved health and safety
outcomes by developing closer partnerships with
local authorities as fellow enforcing authorities
under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act. To
encourage and suppor efforts 1o improve local
and nabional reguiation of health and safety, we
continue to work closely with LACORS, the newly
formed Local Better Regulation Office (LBRO),
professional organizations, and individual local
authorities and regional groups.

Thig year the HSEAocal authority partnership
has been subject to independent evaluation.
This reported a *step change' in the relationship
between HSE and local authorities, with both
partias increasingly embedding partnership as
Ihe way we operate togethar. Woarking with
local authority partners, we made a number of
changes recommended by the evaluation and
have developed a programme 1o implement
further improvements including exploring new
wiays of jointly planning and delnvering inspection
and enforcement 1o better target our joint
resources towarcs risk.

Local authontes have made major
coniributions to the delivery of H3E's Fil2
programme of wiork throwgh their inspection
activity, plus work o raise awarenass on
dermatitis (in the catering, cleaning and beauty
sectors) and the devalopment of a web-based
toolkt aimed at praventing violence in restail and
licensed premises.

Further initiatives are planned for 2009/10,
for example in the South West a project (Work
Well Dorsat) has begun in which all Dorset local
authonties are working with HSE to develop
a point model for delivery of health and safety
regulation across the whaole of the county
throughout 2009/10. The model includes joined-
up approaches to accident investigation and
separate strategies for intenventions with both
large and small businesses.

Parformanca during 200809

Key achievements

HSE and local authorities worked in
partnership to prevent exploitation of
vulnerable migrant and temporary (agency)
workers. This included jointly-organised
inspaction of employment agency arrangements
for managing health and safety (Cambridgeshira);
work to improve information and intelligence-
sharnng across a range of agencies on
accommodation and other issues {Lancashire’
Greater Mancheaster); and inspections of

migrant worker accommodation (Kent/Sussex).
Conditions at sites varied, particukarty with
glectncal equipment and gas apphances.

We took action 1o improve standards where
they were inadequate, including issuing an
improvement notice where gas appliances had
not been checked.

developing closer partnerships with local
authorities as fellow enforcing authorities

Woe revised and published the S18 (section
18) Standard for Health and Safety Enforcing
Authorities, which defines arrangements for
health and safety enforcement. This standard
will be applied to both HSE and local authorities
1o ensure we all have approprate amangements
in place. Part of the 518 Standard"s underpinning
guiclance is complete and the remainder will be
added during the coming year.
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Delivering

Performance during 200809

major hazard outcomes

Objective

...to reduce the risk of catastrophic incidents in major

hazard industries

SE regulates those industries where

catastrophic failures have the potential

o cause substantial harm o people
or society. These include nuclear sites, and
affshore (o and gas) and onshore major hazard
industries (chemical and downstream oil; mining;
explosves manufactune and storags; gas storage
and distribution; and biclogical agents). For those
acthities imolving significant hazard, fsk or public
CONCem, wa employ permissioning regemes that
require higher levels of control (eg through licences,
consents, acceptance of safety cases etc).

The DSOindcators remam on track to
reduce the number of major and significant
hydrocarbon releases offshore, dangerous
cccurences at COMAH (Conirgl of Major
Accident Hazards Regulations) sites onshare,
and the number of events reported by nuclaar
site Bcence holders which are judged 1o have the
potential to challenge a nuclear safety system,

We have intiated a programme of work to
update the non-nuclear aspects of our Expert
Report to the govermment’s Enengy Raview
[published in June 2008) and develop the
necessary organisational strategies, guidance and
knowlecioe frarmework to ensure that HSE s a
responsible enabler of the new energy ecanomy.

The work of HSE's Muclear Directorate
(ND) was examined by the Nuclear Regulataory
Heview camied out by Dr Tim Stone. As a result
of the review, it is now infended that ND should
become a statutory corporation within the
framework of the HSE. A Transition Manager
has been engaged, and a scoping exercise to
takea this work forward has started. The aim is for
the recommendation to be complated in full by
mict-2010, with shadow working arrangements in
place befors than.

ND continued to progress ils work on we tnitiated a

Geanenc Design Assessment (GDA) of the

proposed nuckear new build reactor designs RGCET LG
for Great Britain. Associated with GDA was a lo ensure
resnewy Of the regulatory approach to the siting Ih{]f H 'I";.F I.S

of new nuclear faciities and the provision of
adwice 10 local government authontes, both of
which were completed in Juby 2008, Following
thiz, wa developad and published guidance for
organisations who wish 1o obtain a kcence 1o
construct a nuclear power station, Although
some aspacts of GDA have been subject

to slippage, we are aiming to completa the
programme by the June 2011 end dale as
originally planned.

a responsible
enabler of the
new energy
ECONnONY

Key achievements

In response to the major incident at
Buncefield fuel storage depaot in 2005, we
continued our work with the industry-led
Process Safety Leadership Group (PSLG) to
drive forward implementation of Buncefield
Major Incident Investigation Board's
recommendations. Benchmark standards for
the oulstanding recommendations have been
agreed and the Process Safety Leadership
agenda developed following lessons learmt from
both Buncefield and the BP Texas City refinery
incident. The joint Competant Autharity (HSE.
the Erwvironment Agency and the Scottish
Environment Protection Agency) continue 1o
work collaborativety through PSLG in addrassing
the outstanding recommendations, which aim
to improve the design and operation of fuel
storage sites and emergency arrangements for
dealing with major accidents (see also page 27).
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‘We worked in partnership with the
Environment Agency and the Scottish
Environment Protection Agency to improve the
effectiveness of the regulatory regime covering
major hazard sites. The programme to remodel
the COMAH Regulations aimed to provide a more
coordinated approach to planning and delhsany

of reguiatony activities and 10 increasa the time
inspectors spend camying out site inspecton
against companies’ safety reports. Phase 2 of this
programeme was launched early Apnl 2008 with
the airn of delivering a remodelizd regime by April
2010. This includes nine workstreams detailing
proposals for regulatory changes as well as
changes to tha structure and organisation of tha
Competent Authorty.

We continued to target the managemeant of
asset integrity and refiability in the major
hazards industries. In November 2007 we
published a critical report detaling the fiindings
of a three-year programme of interventions

to monetor the management of maintenance
and levels of integrity on offshore installations.
Following this, the offshore industry has
committed bath substantial rescurces

(£1 billion per year) and leadership support o
remedial actions and improved management
of maintenance. HSE is cumenlly assessing the
industry’s progress in addressing the issues
raized in the report and the results will be
reponed to ministers in Juby 2009,

We investigated significant dangerous
occurrences and learnt lessons from
incidents. For instance following a serious
explosion resulting in the death of two firgfighters,
HSE carried out an extensive review of the

health and safety performance of two fireworks
display and manufacihure companies, The

review concluded Ihat these crganisations

weane no longer fit 1o hold a icence 1o store or
manuiacture explosives which HSE consequently
revoked. This was the first time HSE had used
this power since introduction of the relevant
legisiation in 2005,

We continued the introduction of safety
reviews into HSE's advice to planning
authorities and partners across government.
Following rministerial agreement early in 2008,
HSE began work to develop, test and implemant
land use planning methedologies and policies
which aim to take account of societal risk around
high-risk sites through local development plans.
A senes of trials has bagun which will be followwed
by a technical seminar in 2009/10 to share and
discuss outcomes with stakeholders.

We promoted the importance of process
safety leadership in the nuclear industry. The
peer review workl signalled at the HSE leackership
evenits held in 2003 (see case study on page 21)
has bean taken forward by several licensess

in a joint review of control room operations. A
Requlatary Muclear Interface Protocol betwesen
HSE, the Defance Nuclear Safety Regulator and
major nuclear dutyholders was signed in April
2008, and will underpin ongoing discussions

on the strategic issues affecting the nuclear
programmes between dutyholders, safety
directars and regulators. This has already proved
beneficial in enhancing effective regulation.

To help target our regulatory interventions
we worked with the nuclear industng to develop
safety performance indicators. Preliminary
licensea data has been gatherad and we started
to use this to help direct regulatory interventions
friom April 2008, Further work: to embed this
process is planned for 2009/10. Development
of a model for impraving the use of operating
expenence continued, and is intended to be
completed by March 2010,

We worked with the Nuclear
Decommissioning Authority and regulators

to develop strategies for spent fuel, nuclear
materials, and radicactive waste by 2010, for
implementation by kcensees from 2011 omwards.
Additionally, to ensure the continuad safe
operation of Sellafield, we successfully oversaw
its transition (o a new parent body organisation,
Nuclear Management Parners Limited,
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‘Leading from the top’ to
prevent major incidents

Lessons from recent major incidents,
such as the fire and explosion at the
Buncefield fuel storage depot and the
BPF Texas City refinery fire, underding
the need for strong process safaty
leadership in creating positive safety
cultures. Good leadership from board
level down throughout the organisation
is essential to achieve the right cultura
and enable key decision makers to
understand all the dimensions of
process safety risk when making
business and oparational decisions.
To bring together some commaon
themes and attributes of good process

|

safaty leadership and to create an
ongaoing momantum within industry to
carry this work forward, HSE organised
a conferancea for leaders from major
hazard industries in April 2008 called
‘Leading from the top: Avolding major
incidents’.

Dwring the last three years HSE has
been engaging with the chiel executive
officers and boards of the major
nuclear operators to promote alignment
arpund a common vision of ‘sustained’
axcellance in nuclear operations. This
culminated, as part of the ‘Leading from
the top' conferancea, in the signing of
a formal agreement between HSE and
nuclear industry on more affective ways
of warking. This focused on having a
shared vision, values and behaviours

while respecting each other's distinct
rales and responsibilities. Since the
conference feedback of interactions
has bean collected and has been jointly
reviewed at strategic llaison meatings.
It 15 genarally agreed that this inihative
has improved the effectiveness and
afficiency of nuclear regulation and HSE
is organising a Muclear Chief Executive
confarance in early summar this year 1o
Bild on thas,

HSE will continue working with
the major hazard sector lo complete
this work with the clear expectation
that companies will soon start to
demonstrate that effective process
safety leadership is in place from
board level down within major hazard
anterprises.

Looking forward

Our plans f
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Enabling justice

...to improve standards of health and safety and prevent
harm to workers and members of the public

...to promote a just, fair society and provide equitable
conditions for all businesses to operate under

largeling our
inspections to
Jocus on those
businesses
which present
the highest
risks or have
the poorest
performarnce

SE and local autharities aim o deliver
sustainabie, long-term recductions

in ocoupational il health and injury

by providing advice and guidance; working
in parinarship with stakeholders; conducting
targeted inspections and other proactive work
with dutyholders; and investigating incidents
and complaints. Enforcement action is essential
in underpinning and amplfying the wide range
of intervantions we carry out, Inspectors use
enforcement nofices as a praveniative measure,
1o requing specific improvements where standards
are poor and to stop activities which present
serious risks. Where there is evidence of serous
braaches of the law we will call failing dutyholders
o account through prosecution,

We continue to work with the palice and
the Crown Prosecution Senvice to ensura the
effective investigation of work-related deaths and
any subssquent prosecutions. This has involved
particular consideration of the arrangements
to enforce the Corporate Manstaughter and
Corporate Homicide Act which came into force in
Aol 2008, Although not part of health and safety
law the new offence introduces an important new
alement in the corporate management of heallh
and safaty,

W have taken steps to make better use
of information to improve the targeting of our
inspections to focus on those businesseas which
prasent tha highest risks or have the poorast
performance. We have worked closely with local
authorities to share regional and local inteligence
and a number of joint HSEAocal authority

enforcement-led inifiatives have been camied out
isee case study on page 23 for example).

HSE's enforcement statistics for 2007/08 are
available at wwaw. hae.gov.uk/statistics/enforce.
The statistics for 2008/08 will be published on our
wabsite in October 2008,

Key achievements

We worked with the Environment Agency to
target and improve health and safety issues

in the expanding waste and recycling industry
in north-east London. The fatal incident rate

for the sector is more than ten times the naticnal
average, We visited 50 sites and addressed
issUes on transport, machinery, work at height
and training. Wi plan to revisit many of the sites in
2008710 to ensure that necessary improvemeants
have been made.

We aimed to improve the use of our resources
to maximise the impact on health and safety
outcomes. Following a six-month trial the HSE
Board agreed the Implementation of a risk-

based approach for handling compilaints made
against dutyholders. This will enabla us to use our
resources effectively whera wa can have the most
impact.

Ensuring that our enforcemant decisions are
consistent and in line with our Enforcement
Policy Statement is a key priority for HSE.

To support this, an HSEocal authority inspector
panel camied out a second Regulatory Decision
Making Audit on a sample of investigations to
review the enforcement decisions made. The
results showed an improvemeant in compliance
over the pravious audit. The findings will ba
published shorly.
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Joint intervention by Kent local authorities and
HSE - a common approach to Kent enterprises

In November 2008 HSE and local authority inspectors camied
out a programime of Inspections over a three-weeak penod at
ations acr HKent. The inspections built on previous
joint inktiatives and targeted work at height, manual handling,
duty to manage as

o a further trial of flexibha

impact from joint working by being able to plan activity across
enforcemeant boundaries.

We publicized the initiative in advance by sending a
mailshot to thosa businesses involved, explaining what was
happening and providing information about the priority topics
This was followed up by a press launch. A gquestionnaire was
complated for each business and a full site inspection carmed
aut with inspectors issuing instant visit reports providing
spacific advice and sarving notices, depanding on thair findings.

A total of 334 preamises wera visited resulting in 47
improvement and 29 prohibition notices baing servad.

Aclditi
to their poor condition. The initiative was also succassful in

ally, 25 sets of ladders were taken out of use due

making efficient and effective use of resources by targeting a

learm from one another and share b

Working to prevent injuries and fatalities through
enforcement and prosecution

Enforcament action makes a crucial contribution to preventing ury and
il health. Throughowt 200808 our inspectors have used Doth notices
and prosacution when thair ingpections have identified poor conditions ar
disregard for the law. For example:

An unannounced HSE inspection of an asbestos removal job resulted
in the prosecution of two companies, asbestos baing the singla biggest
cause of work-related deaths in Greal Britain. Work was immediatehy
stopped when our inspectors found debris containing asbestos on most
levels of the 15-storey tower block. The main conlractor was fined

£150 DOD and the asbestos removal comparry £70 000

A company director was prosecuted following an incident in which an
agency worker suffered multiple injuries, While maoving a 40-foot long
container the worker's handing vehicle up-ended causing him to fall

30 feet through the windscreen. The company had previously receed
written advice about the dangers of travalling with a raised load

A joint HSE/police investigation following a fatality at a theme park
inviohaed over 200 witness intendews, axamination of the ride by HSE
spacialkst inspectors and analysis of video footage. Bvidence showead in the
seven days before the incidant 30% of the people on the nde did not hawve
thair restraints checked, The company responsible was fined £250 000,

n one go, testing the new county-
aimie and in anabling inspectors 1o
practice.

Inspections to 28 Welsh care homes resulted

in the issue of 31 enforcement notices and
raised serious concems about the management
of risks. In responsa HSE astablished a working
groun with other regulaiors and stakeholders to
jointhy mn ‘swarenass days” for cana home caners
and managers. More events are planned during
2002810 and the group will also provide improwvied
guidance and e-keaming packages.

Looking forward

Uur plans tor 200910 includs:

¥ reviewing the application of HSE s incident
selection cntera to ensure wa arg Lusang the
restuncas Wa Jdapldy on investgatan 1o the
miaxirmum possible impact;

¥ introducing a nsk-based approach to complants
IVEsgaton 1o enable consistant and

table decesions and proparbonate resoonss;

¥ invesligating significant dangerous
ooourmences, ydrocaroon releases, and

of-containment incidents

othar significant 1o
within major hazard industries;

¥ continuing to take enforcement action in line
with the HSE Enforcemeant Palicy State
and Enforcement Manager

et

1t Model,
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Providing support to government

Objectives

...to provide evidence and advice to help the government
make major policy decisions on health and safety issues
affecting society and the economy

...to provide strategic direction for the health and safety
system

SE's work in this busingss area includes

Hr;ucmming better regulation, developing

and implementing policy on key areas
of health and safety (including enforcement

and major hazard industries), helping to shape

the health and safety debate, contributing 1o

widler govemment policies (Bg on energy), and

negotiating for the LK on health and 'safety in the

European Unicn (EL).

We continued to demonstrate o governmeni
the value of HSE's expert advice and suppaort in
a range of policy areas by:
¥ developing the new HSE strategy for the

whala health and safety system in Great

Britain;

» implementing a strategy to deal efficiently with
proposals for new and developing energy
technologies, ensuring that the nation’s future
demand for energy is met safety;

¥ implementing an international engagement
sirategy designed to maintain HSE's position
as ane of the leading autharities on health
and safety worldwide;

¥ maintaining HSE's position as an exemplary
maodem regulator by achieving already over
hwo-thirds of our 2010 target reduction in
the administrative burden of health and
safety regulation, and developing proposals
to surpass the target, as shown by our third
Better Regulation Simplification Plan.

Key achievements

We developed HSE's new strategy to reset
the direction of workplace health and safety
in Graat Britain. Following the mearger of HSC
and HSE, the draft strategy was launched on

3 December in London, Edinburgh and Cardiff
and was subject to a three-month stakeholder
consultation period. The consultation process
engaged over 700 stakeholders in regional and
national workshops and elicited over 200 written
responsas, The final version was launched in
Juna 2009, supported by the publcation of
HSE's Business Plan 2009/10.

In 2008 we became the regulator for animal
pathogens in England and Wales, and for
Scotland in April 2009, We also provide
scientific support to inspectors in Northern
Ireland. Arising from a report by former HSC
Chair Sir Bill Caliaghan followang the foot and
rmouth disease outbreak, work was taken
forward on delivering a key recommendation
for & single regulatory framework for dangerous
hurman and animal pathogens. We have explored
options and kegal alternatives to fulfil the
recommendations and are currently on frack to
deliver a single set of regulations for human and
anirmal pathogens by Apil 2010,

The Pesticides Safety Directorate (PSD)
transferred to HSE from the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra)
on 1 April 2008. The transfer brings togethar the
various chemical regulatory schemes delivered
by PSD and HSE with the purpose of working
towards greater operational flesdbility in the
dalivary of chemicals regulation. On 1 Apl 2003
PSD merged with relevant parts of HSE to form

a single Chemicals Regulation Directorate, which
will hedp maintain our critical mass of expertisa,
improve efficiency and provide a better reguiatory
SeNice.
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Better regulation
HaE 15 committed 1o better, smanear regulation
Simple, clear legislation can encourage users’
compliance and help deliver better health and
safety outcomes. We understand the benafits o
working in partnership with others, in particular
local authorities, in raising health and safety
ANVAMENESS and SUPDOING empioyers and
workers 1o improve health and safety in thair

¢ organisations.

Simplifying and reducing administration
HSE's third Simplification Flan was published
in Decembar 2008 (see www_hse.gov.uk’
simplification). Tha 2008 plan outhnes tha
progress HSE has made in reducing the levels
of administration azsociated with health and
salety reguiation, as well as showing how the

organisation is delivering the govemment's Better

Regulation agenda — without reducing levels
of health and safety protection. The plan aso
includes details of further simplificaton initaives
for 2009/10

HEpING Dusinesses undarstand their
responsibilities is key to improving health and
safety for everyone, The Plan's simplification
initiathves play an important roke in this,
promaoting a sensible, proportionate and risk
based approach which enables organisations to
conduct thair activities efficiently and safely.

Modernising the registration scheme for gas engineers

The 2006 review of domestic gas safety, Involvi

and industry stakeholders (including gas engin

representa identified no room for complacency and a strong case

for change. HSE listened to thes in developing a modemised gas
angineer registration scheme and on 8 September 2008 awarded a ten-
year service concession agresmeant to the Capita Group Plc to provide a
new registration schame.

The Gas Safe Register replaced CORGI gas registration on
1 April 2008 and is set to deliver improvements in gas safety and
add value for consumers and gas engineers. HSE will measure
performance of the registration schema annually through a series of
aight key parformance indicators, which include raising consumer
awareness of gas safety risks and targaeting unsafe gas waork, along with
consurmer, angineer and stakeholder satisfaction with the registration
schema. Thare are contractual and financial implications should tha schema

provider fail to maeet these performancs levals.

Key achievements

We successfully delivered several -"HI”UH'I!”, clear

i ification initiati i ncluding 5 FT & 1
slmpll ication initiatives in 2008 including le g”f”“ 11
guiciance on abaling he waight of loads; clanting
excaminations of equipment; and Iat_t-illllrl'q chririnic) CCirl
wiater, In addition, requirerments for the haalth ENCOUrage

safety law poster have bean simplified [h.-:-‘ug:r*.
the Health and Safety Information for Employvess
(amendment) Regulations 2008, and outdated
forms have been removed through the Factc
Act 1961 and Offices, Shops and |‘|r|.'|'\.'.|'f-':|:.-'
Fremizes Act 1963 [Repealts and Modifications)
Regulations 2009,

compliance
and help
deliver better
health and
safety

HSE's example risk assessments and "Myth
of the month’ campaign were well received (see
pages 14 and 15)

Our waork in Europe with a number of
stakeholders has resulted in an EC proposal to
delay implementation of the Electromagnetic
Fields Directive and to revisit the evidence for
parts of tha Directive. This was due to concems
owvar the adverse effect of tha onginal Directive on
industry and on the use of magnetic resonance
imaging (MHI) scanners

In October 2008, an indepandent Extamal
Validation Panel approved HSE's cost savings
for a number of HSE's simplification initiatives
NClucEng: asbesios reguiations consolidation;
L:Iurn-,rz.g the laballing of drinking water; easiar
reporting of incdents under RIDDOR; and
axampha risk assassments.
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Improving policy development

We recently reviewed H5E's guidance on
policy making to ensura that all policy advisors
understand the importance of, and apply, a
consistent and high-guality approach to policy
rmaking. A new Policy Capability Team was set up
to ensure that HSE's policies and programmeas
are developad and delivered in ling with the
govemment's Batter Regulation agenda.and
gudelinas on impact assesaments, consultation
and common commencement dates.

Key achievements

During 2008/08 wa continued 1o improve and
build on HSE's approach to delivering policies
and intiatives, For example:

European checkpoint reviews are held to
support and challenge policy officials to
ensure a thorough, tfransparert and accountable
approachis apphed to our role in negotiating and
implemanting European proposals,

We ensure that the Small Business Trade
Association Forum is involved in all aspects
of the policy development process. The

Forum has increased to 52 members, allowing
the views of a wida range of business sectors 1o
be represented in HSE policy making. The Fonsm
lakes an active role in advising on and swpporting
HSE projects, bullding the small business
perspeciive into H3E activities and improving the
wiay' we communicate with small and mediumm
enterprises in implementing the Think Small
First' initiative.

As part of our commitment to improve how we work as a regulator in
partnership with local authorities, we constantly review what can be
achieved. This yaar:

>

new gudance has been introduced for local authorties to ensure,
amaong other things, a more proportionate and risk-based approach to
their enforcernent of health and safety legisiation;

HSE supported the South Wast Regulatory Forum to explora with the
Local Better Regulation Office how partnership across environmental
health, trading standards and thair sponsonng bodies can improve
requlation.

Impact assessments

HSE has published four impact assessmants, which can be found at www,
hae.gov.ukfria and on the Batter Regulation Executive Impact Assessment
Library at www.ialibrary. berr.gov.uk:

¥

bath the Health and Safety Information for Employees (Amendment)
Regulations 2008, and Factoras Act 1961 and Offices, Shops and
Raibway Premises Act 1963 (Repeals and Madifications) Regulations
2009, are in HSE's Simplification Plan and will reduce unnecessany
administrative burdens;

tha Health and Safety (Miscellaneous Amendments and Revocations)
Regutations 2009 will remaove obsolate legislation and make small
amendments to existing regulations;

the Chemical (Hazard Information and Packaging for Supply)
Regulations 2002 are an amandment to the CHIP Regulations as a
consagquence of the adoption and entry into force of the European
Regulation on Classification, Labsaling and Packaging of Substances
and Mixtures Regulations.

Looking forward

Qur plans for 2000/10 inchude:

>

contributing to the review of gas engineers’ competencea 1o ba
undertaken by Gas Safe Register as part of the implementation of the
new gas safety regime;

providing achice and approprate input to the government’s strategic
approach in planning for pandemics such as avian fiu;

contributing to the government's Balter Regulation agenda through
HSE's Simplification Flan, eg improving the regulation of pesticides,
biocices, detergents and the Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and
Restriction of Chemicals (REACH).



Demonstrating public accountability

Objectives

...to demonstrate high standards of accuracy, openness
and timeliness in providing information and in accounting
to government, Parliament, and the public for HSE's
actions, decisions and use of resources

...10 use the best available knowledge and science

to underpin the advice we provide and the decisions

we make

public access
to health

and safety
information
improves
understanding
and
strengthens
confidence in
the health and
safety system

SE is accountable to the public,
HF’Miament and the Depariment for Work

and Pensions for its actions and use of
respurces and must demonstrate that it provides
wvalue for money as a public organisation. To
this end, wa report intermally and extemally on
our performance (see 1he Statement on Intemal
Control, page 48).

HSE believes that public accass 1o health
and safety information improves undarstanding
and strengthens confidence in the health and
safety system. Details of the HSE Board's open
meetings, together with agendas, papers,
minutes and those of its advisory commitieas
and subcommitieas are published at
wianw. hse.gov, uk/abouius/meetings.

Key achievements

We merged HSC and HSE into a single
health and safety authority. On 1 Apel 2008
HSE became a single national regulatony Body
responsible for promoting the cause of better
health and safety at wark.

We supported the Buncefield Major Incident
Investigation Board’s inquiry into the cause
of the explosion and fire at the Buncefield
fuel storage depot - the final report of which

was published in December 2008. During 1he
course of the complex three-yvear investigation a
number of interim reports have been produced.
Thiesa have bean instrumeantal in enabling aarky
action to ba taken to improve the way risks are
controllied at simdlar sites while the wader lessons
are leamed.

In paraliel with the Investigation Board's work,
a criminal investigation was underiaken by HSE
and the Environment Agency, who act as the
joint Compstent Authority under the COMAH
Regulations 1989. On 1 December 2008 HSE
and the Environment Agency launched criminal
proceadings against five defendants for causing
the explosion and fires at Buncefield on
11 December 2005, and causing a major
accident to the environment in the aftermath of
the initial incident (ses also page 15).

We continued to respond to Freedom

of Information (FOI) requests in a timely
manner. From Apel 2008 to January 2009, HsE
receved 5373 FOI requests, 4754 (BE%) were
responded to within the 20-day target or by an
alternatively agreed deadline. HSE is ane of only
two monitored bodies o have recened more
than 1000 requests during each quarter since
the FOI Act was implemented. We continue to
meet Ministry of Justice standards for response
timelines.

Looking forward

Cur plans for 200010 inchude:

¥ hscharging 85% of FOI requeasts within the
20-day time limit and providing monitonng va
quarterly statistics:

» dalivering HSE's diversity action plan for all
diversity strancks for 2009/10; and

} developing and consulting on a single equality
schame for 2010-13.



HESE Annuisl Hepon 200806

Corporate

...to support HSE's priorities at a corporate level by
engaging with stakeholders and undertaking generic
research and analysis

...to ensure the organisation functions effectively
and efficiently, by managing our people and financial
resources and by ensuring it performs functions in
accordance with the law

Science and research
Scientists, engingers and other expart staff in
HSE and cur agency the Health and Safety
Laboratory (H5L) play a pivotal role in supporting
the work of our main business areas and of
other government depariments. We use science
and analysis to identify the causes of incidents,
devedop solutions to risks in the workplace, test
the effectivensess of our interventions, and idantify
niew and emerging risks.
HSL cames out and publishes research
and provides scientific and forensic services on
behalf of HSE. As an agency, HEL compeates in
the marketplace, providing scientific research
and services to non-HSE customers whila
being HSE's prime provider of science. HSL s
performance duning the yvear can be found in
thia H5L Annual Report & Accounts 2008/2000
available at www.hsl.gov.uk from 30 Juna 2009.
Ciur analysts have supported HSE's work
programmes with statistical anahysis, suney work
and impact assessments. To support the delivery
of the targets and other key objectives during
2008/09, H3E has been working to:
} improve the quality of HSE's science;
¥ improve the use of evidence in HSE;
» provide high-quality data and dissaminate key
statistics;

¥ conduct research on workplace interventions
and emerging lechnologies;

»  provide expert advice on epidemiology social

» conduct honzon scanning and fuiures work.

Key achievements

We commissioned and published research

in a wide range of scientific or engineering
topics which will be used to support and monitor
improvements in industries such as consinuction,
waste management and recycling, or 1o apply
effective solufions to reduce sips and asthma.
More detail of the outcomes of HSE's research can
be found in cur research projects directony at

We launched a series of employer and
employee surveys, aimed at groups and
areas targeted by the Fit3 programme, to
baseline and track the changes in workplace
conditions most likely to lead to injury and ill
health. The results showed that ower the survey
perod thers were improvermeants in the control
and management of some key haalth and safaty
risks in the workplace. For exampls, there were
significant improvements in training for workers
and in the provision of control maasures, such
as work rastraints or safety hamesses to prevent
falls fram height.

HSL supplied technical and specialist support
to approximately 250 front-line investigations
and inspections. HSL's work helps HSE
understand the specific causes of incidants

and of workplace risks and how they may be
prevented in the future,
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How common is work-related cancer? Using epidemiology
to provide an answer

oo
- for instance, smok of work-
related ca di y and use this information to present overall and detal
statistics about them.

How then can HSE establish the night balance in our priorities batwesan
wark-related cancer and other haalth and safety risks? Although we cannot
count cases of work-related cancer, we can usé epidamiclogy 1o estimate the
number of cases that occur becausa of exposu i

speaking, the number of cases that would not o

k 5 that 4.9% (|
Britain in 2004 w SiX Ky can
ogens, aguivalant to 7300 deaths in 2004,

attributable to work-related

This research will help HSE evidence-based priarities for action 1o

In particular, it will help us to mora

Pesformance during 200809

Legal support

The Legal Adviser's Office (LAO) supports the
work of HSE, particularty in enabling just
provading support to government by providing
Mgn-cuakty legal aoace 1o meshioatons,
enforcement decision makers and policy makers
n HSE. LAC also provides guidance in HSE's
Enforcernent Guide and monitors the work of the
solicitor agents engaged by HSE in enforcement
cases. Its key achievaments form part of those
highlighted elsewhere in this report.

2 Jdricl

Corporate support

Cur Besources and Planning Directorate (RPD)
provaded many of HSE's corporate senice
functicns, including HR sarvices, finance,
planning, procurement, estates management,
mlcrmation echnology, ntemal audit and
:,}E‘"Ufl.‘larlr:l'j |'.1;_-'|na|:,]e|'|'.e.'1': | S -El_;i[l’jl‘lﬂl'l', o
Intermal Control for perfonmancs

details). BPD also supported a number of
imporiant projects aimed at improving HSE's

effectiveness and afficiency. Examples in
200809 include implementing improved
information security standards (see pages 36-37
and 48): and coordinating the Easier Access to
Services [EASE) programme, which will prowvide
improved infermation and advice for telephone
callers.

scientists, engineers and
other expert staff in HSE
and HSL play a pivotal role
in supporting the work of
OUr Main DUSINESS areas
and of other government
departments
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Health and safety in HSE

overall, FHISE
PeNainns

on track to
achieve its
largets

SE seeks to maximise the well-baing of
our staff and minimise the distress and

losses resulting from ill health and injury.

In Bne with its achice to other organisations,
HSE's Senior Management Team leads an
improving health and safety and monitors
progress regularty. it engages with and consulls
staff through a network of safety representatives
from HSE's trade unions.

In 2005, HSE sel challenging long-tem
targets for incident reduction as part of a three-
year framework. HSE's annual health anc safety
plan sats cut the progress to be sought each
year, and the activities 1o deliver it. Owverall, HSE
remains on track to achieve its targets.

Table 4 Accident and ill-health statistics

The number of incidents reportable under
RIDDOR remains at alow leval and at rates
markedly better than those in comparable
organisations. In 2008/09, for the third year
running, there was a fall in incidents leading to

injury,

Sickness absence

Sickness absence has fallen steadily through the
year from 8.13 working days lost per employes
per year in Aprl 2008 to 6,97 (provisional) as of
31 March 2008, This mests our target of eight
days or kst for the 2008/09 reporting yaar and
prepares us 1o meet the challange of 6.2 working
days lost per emploves by the end of 200810,

Apr-Mar Apr-tar Apr-Mar Apr=hdar Apr=bdar
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Incidents reportable under RIDDOR
Fatal injuries (1] a 0 0 9]
Major injuries 1 (1) (1) 2 (1) 1
Dangerous ocoumenceas 0 1 1 0] 4]
Cver-3-gay injuries 1 3 8 (1) 7 (2 15 (&)
Il healthy 1 4 1 0 a4
Dther= 0 0 a 12 0
3 8{1) 10(2) 10 (3) 20 (5)

Non-RIDDOR reportable incidents
Other over-3-day injuries, eg road traffic accidents 6 2 o i} 1
Il health other 72 93 a2 105 123
Minor injuries 56 (12) 61 (1) 82 (15) 108 (15} 133 (20)
Mear missas, including verbal abuse and 114 (5) 117 258 (B) 268 (B) 126 (4)

possible accidental asbestos exposura

Total 251 (17) 281 (2) 442 (23) 497 (28) 403 (29

a  RIDDOR fodher) = infuny fo employves nof af work who was laken o hospial after an injuny sustained on premises opsrated by HSE
Figuras for non-HSE sialff pa contractors) ane ncluded and shown in brackels. Source: H5Es e-HR system.

B}
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The Health and Safety Executive
HSE perfonms its funclions on behall of the
Crown, Tha Health and Safaty at Work etc Act
1974 established HSE on 1 January 1975 to
support its former govening body, the Health
and Safety Commission (H3C), which came into
being on 1 October 1974, Responsibility for HSC
and HSE transferred to the Depariment for Work:
and Pensions (DWPF] i Julby 2002,
On 1 April 2008 HSC and HSE merged
to form one unitany body supporting the
govermment's sirategic aims and currant targets
for health and sataty at work, (The Legisiative
Reform [Health and Safety Executive) Order 2008
amended the Health and Safety at Work etc Act
1974 to provide for the introduction of the unitany
bady.) The ‘new’ HSE remains accountable to
DWP and its main aim is the prevention of death,
injury and ill health to thosa at work and thosa
affected by work in Great Britain. HSE's Board
provides strategic direction for Great Britain's
healih and safety system and reports to the
Secretary of State for Work and Pensions, and to
other Secretaries of State,
HSE's Board has powers to:
> approve and issue codes of practice, with the
consent of the Secretary of State, subject to
consultation with government departments
and cther organisations;
>  make agreements with any govemment
department or person to perform HSE
functions on HSE's behalf;
¥ make agreements with any minister,
government depariment, or public authority
for HSE to perform funclions on their behalf;
» gve mandatory guidance o local authorities
on enforcement; and
» direct HSE or authorise any other person to
investigate and report on accidents or other
matters and, subject to regulations made by
the ralavant minister, diract inguiries to be
held.

Management Commentary

HSE's Chair and other Board members follow
a code of practice which conforms to Cabinet
Office guidanca, It sets out the responsibiities
of the Chair and the comporate and mdividual
responsibiities of the Board members,

Public interest and other

Corporate governance

The retationship with cur sponsoring departmeant,
CWR, and the framework within which corporate
govarnance operates is set out in the Framework
Dacurment. Yiou can find this at www.hae.gov.uk/
aboutus/framework$01-a5.pdf.

The Chair and members of HSE's Board
ara appointed by the Sacretary of State and ara
drawn from a wide range of backgrounds. The
Board meeats monthly and has responsibility
for detenmining strategy, HSE's policies,
broad resource allocation, and oversight of
performance, financial and corporate risk
management.

HSE's Senior Management Team (ShT)
provides advice to the Board on all key issues
and is responsibie for implementing and
dalivening the Board's strategy and policies, The
SMT meets formally monthly, supplemented by
wisekly video confersnces,

The Audit Committes supports the Board
and the Chief Execulive, in his role as HSE's
Accounting Officer, in discharging their
raspective responsibilities, In particular, the Audit
Commitiee provides independent adhvice on the
appropriatenass and adequacy of HSE's risk
managemant, intermal control and govemance
arrangements; it also advises on overall valus-
for-moneay issues. In line with the HM Treasury
Audit Committee Handbook, it has a wholly
non-executive mambership, compasing two non-
exacutive directors of the HSE Board and two
independent extemnal members. This strengihans
HSE's governance arrangemants by increasing
the Commitiee's capacity to challenge curment



practice. The Chiaf Executive (HSE's Accounting
Officer), HSE's Finance Director, the Head of
Intermal Audit and a representative of the National
Audit Office normally attend meetings to inform
the Committes's discussions. Meetings take
place at least four times a year.

HSE's Chief Executive makes delegations in
writinig on the use of resources to HSE's main
budget holders. The main budget holders then
issue any further delegations in writing.

Sustainability

W rermnain committed to making HSE mare

emvironmentally fiendhy and, during 2008/09, the

following activities have supported this aim;

¥ we introduced recycling schemes for glass,
cans and plastic in all our offices in London
and the south-east, Mersayside, and
Scotland and plan to extend the arrangement
across the rest of the HSE estate;

» we sel up display energy cerfificates (DECs)
for all HSE offices over 1000 m? in ling with
nes lagistation;

> as part of the arrangements for the relocation
of the Glasgow office, we established an
Ermaronmental Subgroup of staff to look at
grean issues. This was the first time we had
used such an approach and it produced
real banefits. Thase ncleded improved
specifications for energy (efficient heating and
ighting systems) and water managemeant as
well as proposals to encourage 'green’ staff
behaviour. The armangament will now be a
standard feature of our approach to major
property events;

¥ office fumiture is now recycled wheanever
possible through Greenworks, an accredited
organisation that redistributes old furniture to
charities and small start-up businesses. This
helps to reduce the amount of waste entening
the landfill systern;

>  the rising trend in the use of videoconferancing
continued in 2008 with an approximate 3%

increase (105 conferencas). The number of
participants using the system also increased

by a total of 1403 (approximate 7% increase).

Workforce and recruitment

Recruitment into HSE is conducted in line with
tha Civil Servica Commissionar’s Recruitrment
Code. We operate systems and procedures
that meet the Code and ensura that recnuitment
15 camed out on the basis of fair and open
competition and selection on merit. The
systems and procedurss ane subject 10 penodic
internal and extemal audits. The Code requires
departments to publish summary information
about their recruitment and the use of permitted
exceptions to the principles of fair and open
competition and selection on merit.

During 2008/08 HSE recruited 346 new
staff, including 53 for HEL. Table 5 shows the
total number of staff in post at 1 Apdl 2009, One
of our prionties was to maintain the number of
staff engaged in ‘front-ling’ cperations. Over the
year we recruited 114 traines inspectors and 50
specialists into a range of disciplines (including
nuciear, offshore and mechanical enginearing).
In June 2009, under a new recruitment initiative,
up ta 30 expenencead, supenisory-level
construction workers will join as construction
inspeciors on two-yvear fuced-term contracts.

A further priodty was {0 ensure DUSINESs
continuity while work was relocated from
London to Merseyside 1o set up the single sita
headquarters, and to help staff not relocating
to find altermative employment in London. To
support the ongong transition amangements
we have retained sufficient key staff to transfer
corparate knowledge to the new staff recruited
on Merseysice, ie 108 new posts wene fillked by 65
extemal recruits (as part of the overall recruitrment
figure above) and 43 intarnal staff moves.

Consistent with our aim to work closety
with our partners and intemational reguiatory
bodies, we managed 92 UK and ten oversaeas
secondments.
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Learning and development

HESE remains committed to ensuring its staff have,

or are developing, the compeatence to enabla them

to fulfil their roles effectively. During the year we

> arranged fraining and developmeant activity
for staff with more than 7746 attendances
at over 1641 events which included
management and parsonal development
courses for a range of staff and technical and
legal courses for new and existing regulatony
and specialist nspectors. (Mew corporate
systams have enabled the recording of
all learning and development activities.
Previously recorded figures accounted for
only contract and technical training);

¥ continued to develop new coursas within
HSE's post-gradueate diploma. This training
hazs supported ongoing development of our
regulatory inspectors and course feedback
has baen positive;

» caried out a comprehensive retender
exercisa to identify supplers for future
personal skills and management development
training. Our new contractors, Eliesha
Training and Dynamic Learming Solutions,
signed contracts on 1 Decamber 2008 for a
penod of five years,

Diversity
HSE's policies for recruitment, manageament and
progression of staff create an inclusive culture
in which diversity is fully valued. Cur equality
schemeas for disability, gender and race ara
monitored by senior managament and our frade
unions on HSE's Diversity Steering Group. The
schemas, available on H5E’s websita
(www.hse.gov.uk/diversity) are supported by a
more detailed diversity action plan covaring all
the diversity strands. To take forward diversity in
2008/09 wa:
¥ implemented a programme of regionally
targated advertising o attract more people
from a black and minority ethnic (BME)
background to apply for trainee inspector
posts;
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» appointed two new training providers to
develop and deliver a new range of standalone
and integrated (within other courses) diversity
training across HSE;

¥ designed a personal development scheme
for junior BME staff, The scheme will be
introduced in 200810 (with further plans to
exttend it to staff in other dversity strands
under-represented at senior levels);

¥ promoted and monitored the use of the
Equality Impact Assessmant tools by staff who
develop policy, sirategy and guidance,

HSE's diversity survay statistics for staff in post by

gender/race/disability are published on our website

at wawnw hes gov ulk/aboutusireports/divarsity. htm,

Employee involvement

HSE's policy s to consult the trade unions

representing our staff on major organisational

and staffing changes and issues affecting the

terms and conditions of employment. Thereis a

formal consultation structure, chaired by the Chief

Executive, between HSE management and unions

within the Whitley systemn at bath national and local

lavils,

We informed staff of emerging issues through
weekly electronic news bullating, HSE's website,
intranat and monthty in-house magazine. SMT
members also delivered a senes of evenls across
HSE on tha business challenges and structural
changes facing the organisation, enabling
guestions and actions o be made, Issuas of
significance this year ware:

» agreeing HSE's 2007 Spending Review
sattlernent with ministars and DWP for the
penod 2008/09-2010/11;

* support for staff in scope of H3E's "How and
Where We Work® programme and the transition
of work to the Merseyside Headguarters; and

» agreeing HSE's pay remit with Treasury for
a further three years to 2010411, enabling
negotiations to commence with HSE's trade
unionNs.
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Personal data related incidents

HSE is required this year, for the first time, to report on personal data related incidents. Incidants,

the disclosure of which would in itself create an unacceptable rigk of harm, may be excluded in
accordance with the exemptions contained in the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or maybe subject
ta the limitations of other UK information legistation.

Table & Summary of protected personal data related incidents formally reported to the
Information Commissioner's Office in 2008/09

Date of  Nature of Mature of NMumber of people Motification
incident (month) incident data involved potentially affected steps
Mil Mil Mil Mil Mil

Incidents deemed by the Data Controller not to fall within the criteria for report to the Information
Commissionar's Office but recorded centrally within HSE are set out in Table 7. Small, localised
incickents are not recorded centrally and are nat cited in these figures.,

Table 7 Summary of other protected personal data related incidents in 2008/09

Category  Nature of incident Total

| Loss of inadecquately protected electronic equipment, devices Mone
or paper documents from secured government premises

[ Loss of inadequatety protected electronic aquipment, devices Mone
or paper documents from outside secured govermment premises

n Insecure disposal of inadequately protected electronic equipment, Mone
devices or paper documents

v Unauthorised disclosure None

) Other Mone

i s o
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Table 8 Year-on-year total numbers of protected personal data related incidents prior to 2008/09

Total number of protected personal data related

incidents formally reported to the Information
Commissioner's Office, by category number

Total number of other protected personal
dlata redated incidents, by category number

I [ i " W Total I I I |7 v Total

2007/08 - Mone . . - - Mone
2008/07 . None . . . - None
2005/06 - - - - - Mang - - - - Nane
Payments to suppliers Thera were no interest charges payable during 2008/09 (2007/08 - nil

HSE iz committed to the prompl payment of
bills for goods and services received and is a
signatory to the principles of the Betler Payment
Practice Code, issued by the Better Faymant
Practice Group. Payments are normally made as
spacified in the coniract. If there is no contraciual
provision o other understanding, payment 1S
dua o ba made within 30 days of the recaipt of
the goods or services or presentation of a valid
irvoice or similar demand, whichever is later. On
8 October 2008 the Prime Minister committed
govemnment organisations to speeading up the
payment process, paying suppliers wheraver
possible within ten working days. The standard
terms and conditions in maost contracts and the
legistative penods within the Late Payment of
Commercial Debis (Interest) Act 1998 remain at
30 days. HSE implemented the reduced target
of ten working days from 1 January 2009. HSE's
overall performance during 2008/03 was 98.68%
against the 30-day targat (2007/08 - 98.9%).
Performance against the ten-day target between
January and March 2008 was 91.65%.

retating to the Late Payment of Commarcial Debits (Interest) Act 1988 or the
Late Payment of Commercial Debts Regulations 2002.

Introduction of the euro

HSE continues to maintain its changeover planning and preparation
activities such that, in the event of a positive decision to join the singla
European cumency, the changes required to the computer systems,
business systems and products will have been entified and quantified
and we would be able to meet the imescales set out in the Third National
Changeaover Plan,

Pension liabilities
Details of pension costs alc are contained in MNote 1() and Mote 3 ta HSE's
accounts and in the Remunaration Report.

External auditors
HSE's financial statements have been audited under Schedule 2
paragraphs 14(2) and 20 of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 by
the Compiroller and Auditor General whose certificate and report appeaar on
pages 52-53.

The cost of audit work was £129 460, which related solely to audit
senices. This figure includes £13 460 relating to tigger point audit work
for transition to International Financial Reporting Standards undertaken on
behalf of both HSE and HSL.

a7
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Financial position and results for the year

HSE s fimancial plan for 2008/09 was designad 1o deliver its planned
preventative and investigative programmes and met the three ministerial
prionties linked to its Spending Review 2007 sattlement of maintaining the
front-line inspection force; continuing to adhers 1o the currant enforcement
policy: and sustaining the commitmeant 1o the Revitalising Healih and Salety
targats. HSE has successiully managed to increasa front-ne numbers
across the year, maintained activity and continued to deliver the planned
efficiency programmes. HSE's financial plan for the SRDT period is to spend
proportionally more resource in the last two years of the period (2009710
and 2010/11) in support of strategy delivery without creating potentially
unaffordable forward commitments into SR10.

Financial position (balance sheet)
HSE's balance sheeat shows tolal deblors of £34.7 million (£14.8 million of
which redates o income due o HSE for chargeable activities) and creditors
of £88.8 million (£61.6 milkon of which relates to the hong-tesm Bability 10
pay finance lease charges on HSL's Buxton site and £5.9 million to the
balance with HM Paymaster General not yet cleared at 31 March 2009).
Tangitle fixed assets of BEE6.9 millon are also a significant component
of the balance sheat, of which £58.2 million refates to HSL's PFl contract at
the Buxion site.

Results for the year (operating cost statement)
The operating cosl statement shows a net operating cost of £219.2 milkon
(200708 = £215.1 million (restated)) for HSE,

Cash flow statement
HSE's cash flow statement shows a net cash outflow from operating
activities of £206.6 million, comparned to £208.9 milion in 2007/08 (restated).
Cash outflow of £9.0 million from investing activities (net of £0.4 milion
proceads from disposal of fixed assats) consists of expenditure on fved
assat additions of £9.4 million (£5.9 million of which relates 1o leasehold
improvements),
The ditference in the cash balance at 31 March 2008 and 31 March
20089 is a timing issue related to the process of how HSE receives its cash
requirement from DWP (see Mote 10 to the accounts).

Funding
HSE is financed by Grant-in-Aid within DWP's
Reqguest for Resources (RIR) 2.

Prior year comparatives

Comparalive figures have bean restated (where

appropriate) as a result of the followaing:

> the merger with HSC;

> the transter of the Pesticides Salety
Directorate from Defra on 1 Aprl 2008;

»  alkK GAAP requirement to capitalise
intangible [T assets (software koences)
procured under a PFl contract,

Further details can be found in Mote 2 to

HEE's accounts, “Transfer of functions and

restatemants’.

International Financial Reporting Standards
From 1 Apnl 2009, the accounts of HSE, along
with other central government departmenis

and entities in the wider public sector, will be
produced using International Financial Reparting
Standards (IFRS), as interpretec for the public
sector in the IFRS-based Financial Repoiting
Manual (FReh). Freparation for the efficient
transition to IFAS-based financial reporting for
HSE has been through adoption of the Hk
Treasury trigoer point system in conjunciion with
MAQ. HSE has ensured all necessary processes
and procedures are in place in readiness for
adoption as at 1 Apnl 2009,

Director's statement

So far as the Accounting Officer is aware, thera
is no relevant audit information of which HSE's
auditors are unaware.

The Accounting Officer has taken all steps
that he ought to have taken to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information and fo
astablish that HSE's auditors are aware of that




Remuneration Report

Management

Appointments

The Chair was appointed for a perod of five
years in October 2007, if the Chair leaves the
Executive other than on the expiry of their term
of office, and it appears to the Secretary of State
that there are special circumstances that justity
the payment of compensation, a payment can be
macde as determined by the Secratary of State,
with Treasury approval.

The Chief Executive is appointed for a fixed
term of up to five years, All senior officials are
establizhed members of the Sanior Civil Service
and subject to standard Cabinet Office terms and
conditions. Nona recenes any predetermined
compensation on termination of ofiice.

The Secratary of State appoints the
Chair. Senior officials are civil servants and
appointments are made in accordance with the
Civil Service Commissioners’ Hecruitment codea.

Remuneration policy

The remuneration of senior civl Senvants is s8t by

the Pama Minister following independant advica

from the Review Body on Senior Salaries,
In reaching its recommendations, the

Review Body is to have regard 1o the following

considerations:

» the need to recruit, retan and motivate
suitably able and qualified people to exarcise
their different responsibilities;

» regionaliocal variations in labour markets and
their effects on tha recruitment and retention
of staff;

¥ government policies for improving the
public senvices including the requiremeant on
departments to meet the output targets for
the delivery of departmental services;

¥ the funds available to departments as set
gut in the government's Deparimental
Expenditure Limits; and

} the government's inflation target.

The Review Body takes account of the evidence

it receves about wider economec considerations

and the affordabdity of its recommendations.
Further information about the work of the
Review Body can be found at wisnw.ome, uk.com.

Service contracts

Civil service appointments are made

in accordance with the Civil Senvica
Commissioners’ Recruitment Code, which
requires appointment to be made on mart on
the basis of fair and open compstition but also
inchudes the crcumstances when appointrmeants
may otherwise be made.

Unless otharwise stated below, the officials
coverad by this report hold appointments which
are open ended. Early termination, ather than
for misconduect, would result in the indhidual
recening compensation as set out in the Civil
Service Compansalion Scheme.
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Salary and pension entitlements
The tollowing sections provide details of the remuneration and pension interests of the
Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive and board membears.

Tablz 10 Remuneration (this information is subject to audit)

2008/09 200708
Allowances Salary Allowances Salary
and taxable Benefits  full year and taxable Benefitzs  full year
EXpEenses in kind equivalent EXPENSES in kind equivalent
Salary to nearest to nearest (FYE) Salary tonearest o nearest IFYE)
£'000 £100 £100 £'000 £000 £100 £100 £'000
Chief Executive and
Deputy Chief Executive
Geoffrey Podger CB 180-185 8 800 -  1B0-1B5 170-175 - = 170=-175
Kevin Myers? 65-70 5 500 1900 120125 - . - .
Sandra CaldwelP 70-75 - - 115120 - - - -
Justin MeCracken - . - - 145-150 . - 145-150
Jonathan Rees - - - - 115120 - - 125-130
Board members
Sir Bill Callaghan - - = - 85=70 - = 120=125
Judith Hackitt CBE 140-145 1 800 - 135-140 40-45 - - BO-85
Sandy Blair CBE 15-20 2 200 - 15-20 19=20 1 900 - 15=-20
Danied Camigan OBE 15-20 4 400 - 15-20 15-20 5400 - 15-20
Robin Dahiberg 15-20 100 - 15-20 15-20 . - 15-20
Judith Donovan CBE 15-20 6 800 - 15-20 15-20 5300 - 15-20
David Gartsida 15-20 3 200 - 15-20 . . - -
Professor Sayvead Khan 15-20 5500 - 15-20 15=20 = 600 - 15-20
Hugh Robertson 15-20 - - 15-20 15=-20 . . 15=20

Elizabeth Snape MBE 15-20 200 - 15-20 15=20 100 E 15-20
John Spanswick CBE - - - = - : z =

& Kevin Myers was appoinfed as Deputy Chial Executive with affect from 13 October 2008, His salary prior to this is not included,
b Sandrg Caidws was Temporany Depufy Chiel Executive from 1 Apal 2008 1o 72 October 2008,

Salary
'‘Salany” includes gross salary; performance pay or bonuses; overtime; resanved rights 1o London
weighting or London allowances; and recruitment and retention allowances. This presentation is

based on payments made by the Health and Safety Executive.

a1
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Benefits in kind (this information is subject to audit)
Tha monetany value of benefits in kind covers any benefits providad by {he employer and treated by
HW Revenue and Customs as a taxable emolument. These benefits for Board members include travel
and subsistence payments associated with home {o office travel, as appropriate. Any ensuing tax
liabiity i= meat by HSE. The benefit in kind in respact of the Deputy Chiel Executive reflects his use of
HSE's private vahicle user scheme.

Mo significant awards were made to past senior managers.

Mo compensation was payable to fomer senior managers.

Mo amounts were payable to third parfies for services of a senior managers.

Pension benefits
Table 11 Pension benefits - Chief Executive and Deputy (this information is subject to aucdit)

Accrued pension Real increase in pension CETV CETV Real

and lump sum and related lump at at increase

at age 60 sum at age 60 31/03/09 31/03/08 in CETV

£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Geoffrey Fodger CB* 70-75 2.5-5.0 1 556 1 4086 42
pension and pension and
215-220 5.0-7.5
lump sum lump sum

Kevin Myers 40-45 5.0-7.5 884 715 113
pension and pension and
130-135 15.0-17.5
lump sum lump sum

a These figures take no accoun! of Mr Podger’s pension rights from & prévious employrmant that are in the
process of being fransferred.

The curmant Chair is not a member of the Principal Civil Service Pansion Scheme (PCSPS) and a
contribution of 25% of salary is made o a stakeholder pension provider.

For all previous Chairs (including Sir Bill Callaghan), no contribution has been made to a
slakeholder pension provider but a pension provision has been set up, in ine with FRS 17, ona 'by
anakyay 10 the PCSPS' basis to account for the value of an equivalent fund,



Civil Service Pensions (CSP)
Pension banefits are provided through the
CEP arrangements. From 30 July 2007, civil
sarvants may be in one of four defined benefit
schemes: either a ‘final salary” schame (classic,
premium, and classic plus) or a 'whole career’
scheme (nuvios). The statutory arangements are
unfunded with the cost of benefits met by monies
voted by Parliament each year, Pensions payabie
under classic, premium, classic plus and nuvos
are increased annually in line with changes in the
refail price index (RPT). Members joining from
1 October 2002 may opt for either the
appropriate defined benefit arangemeant or a
qood-guality ‘monay purchase’ stakeholder
pansion with a significant employer contribution
(partnership pension account),

Employee contributicons are set at the rate
of 1.5% of pansionable eamings for classic
and'3.5% for premium, classic plus and nuves.
Benefits in classic accrue at the rate of 1/80th
of pensionable salary for each yesar of sendce. In
addition, a lump sum equivalent to three years’
pension iz payabée on retirement. For premium,
bengfits accrue at the rate of 1/60th of final
pensionable earnings for each year of senace.
Unlike classic, there is no automatic lump sum,
Classic plus is essentially a hybrid with benefits
in respect of senicea before 1 October 2002
calculated broadhy as per classic and benefits
for senvice from October 2002 calculated as in
premium, In nuvos a member builds up a pension
based on their pensionable eamings during their
penod of scheme membership. At the end of the
scheme (31 March) the member's eamed pension
is credited with 2.3% of their pensionable eamings
in that scheme vear and, immediatety after the
scheme year end, the accrued pension is uprated
in Ena with the BPI. Inall cases, members may opt
to give up ([commute) pension for lump sum up to
the Emits set by the Finance Act 2004,

The partnership pension account is a
stakeholder pension amangement. The employer
makes a basic contribution of between 3% and

12.5% {depending on the age of the membar)
into a stakeholder pension product chosen by
the emploves from a panal of three providers.
The employes does not have 1o contribute

but where they do make contributions, the
employver will match these up to a mit of 3% of
pensionable salary (in addition to the employear's
basic contribution). Emplovers also contribute a
further 0.8% of pensionable salary to cover the
cost of risk benefit cover (death in service and
ill-health retirement).

The accrued pension quated is the pansion
ithe member is entitled 1o receive when they
reach pension age, or immediately on ceasing
to become an active member of the scheme if
they are already at or over pansion age, Pension
age is 60 for members of classic, pramium and
classis plus and 65 for members of nuvos.

Further cietails about the Civil Service pension
arrangements can be found at www . civilsenice-
pEnsions.gov.uk.

The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)
A Cash BEquivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the
acluarially aszessed capitalised value of the
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member
at a paricular point in time. The benefits valued
are the members” accruad benefits and any
contingent spousa’s pension payatle from

the schama. A CETV is a payment madea by

a pension scheme or arrangement o sacure
pansion benefits in another pension scheme or
arrangement when the member leaves a scheme
and chooses 1o transfer the pension benefits
they hawve accrued in their former scheme. The
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that
the individual has accrued as a consaquence of
their tolal membership of the pension scheme,
not just thelr senvice in a sanior capacity to which
disclosure applies. The figures include the value
of any pension benefit in another schéme or
arrangement which the individual has transiemed
to the Civil Senvice pension arrangements. Thay
also include any additional pension benefit
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Statement of the Executive’s and the
Chief Executive’s responsibilities

1974 the Health and Safety Executive is required to prepare a statement of accounts for each
financial year in the form and on the basis determined by the Secratary of State, with the
consent of the Treasuny. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a frue and fair
view of the Executive’s state of affairs at the year-end and of its net operating cost, recognised gains
and losses and cash fliows for the financial year.
In preparing its accounts, the Executive is required to comply with the requirements of the

Government Financial Reporting Manueal and in particular to:

¥  observe the Accounts Drections issued by the Secratary of State, including the relewant
accounting and disclosure requiraments, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent
basis;

»  make judgements and estimates on a reasonabie basis;

» state whether applicable accounting standards, as set out in the Government Financial Reporting
Manual, have been followed, and disclose and explain any matenal departures in the accounts;
and

¥ prepare the accounts on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Executive will continue in operation.

The Accounting Officer for the Department for Work and Pensions has designated the Chief Executive

of the Health and Safaty Executive as Accounting Officer for the Executive. His redevant responsibilities

ag Accounting Officer, including his responsibilities for the propriety and regularity of the pubihc
finances for which he is answerable, for keeping proper records and for safeguarding assels are set
out in Managing Futiic Maney published by HM Treasury.

Under paragraphs 14(1) and 20(1) of Schedule 2 of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act

47
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Statement on Internal Control

1 Scope of responsibility

Om 1 Apnl 2008, the previoushy separate legal bodies of the Health and Safety Commission (HSC) and
the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) merged to become a single unitary body. The Chair of HSC
becama Chair of the new HSE Board and existing commissioners were appointad as non-executive
board members. The new Board has responsibility for determining strategy, agreeing the business
plan, including the broad allocation of resources, and for fimancial performance and risk management,
The Chief Executive became the Chisf Executive aof the new HSE, reporting to the Board, and the
officials who had previously been HSE board members became the Senior Managemesnt Team (ShT).
The SMT provides advice to the new Board on all key issues, implements its policies and plans, and
HSE's statutony responsibilities.

As Accounting Officer, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of intermal control
that supports the achievernent of the Health and Safety Executive’s policies, aims and objectives,
agread with the Depariment’s ministers. During 2008/03 | was also responsible for safeguarding the
public funds and assets for which | am personaly responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities
assigned 1o me in Managing Pubiic Maoney.

The HEE is a Mon-Departmental Public Body with Crown status, established under the Health and
Safety at Waork etc Act 1974, The sponsonng department is the Departrment for Work and Pensions
(CWR). DWP ministers have primary responsibility for health and safety issues in govemment. HSE also
repors to other ministers on different aspects of health and safety. The Health and Safety Laboratony
(H5L) was established as an in-house agency of HSE on 1 Apnl 1995 and operates on ‘Mext Steps’
agency principles, HSL provides health and safety science and research services. |t has its own
Accounting Officer and armangements to manage risk.

HSE's mission is the prevention of death, injury and il health ta those at work and those affecied
by work activities, and with that to achieve a record of workplace health and safety that lsads the
waorld, The HSE Board sets the strategy for securing haalth and safety in refation to work activities and
has published a revised strategy for the heslth and safety system in Great Britain.

2 The purpose of the system of internal control

The systam of infemal control is designed to manage nsk to a reasonable level rather than to eiminate
all risk of failure to achieve policies, ams and objectives. It can, therefore, provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of intemal control is based on an angaing
process designad to identify and prioritise therisks 1o the achisvement of HSE's policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the Bkelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
redlised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control
has been in place in HSE for the year ended 31 March 2009 and, up to the date of approval of the
Annual Report and Accounts, accords with HM Treasury guidance.

3 Capacity to handle risk
HSE's annual business plan for 2008/09 set out how HSE intended to develop a new strategy, deliver
its key business objectives (including its Departmental Strategic Objectives (DS0s) and the Revitalising
Health and Safety targets) and mest iis statutory oblgations.

Arrangements for managing business risk are in place and continue to be improved by HSE's
directorates, divisions, programmes and projects.
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HSE has continued to take action throughout 2008/08 to embead and raise awareness of business
risk across the organisation. HSE participates in HM Treasury's Risk Improvement Group, seeking
to adopt good practice and learn from other parts of government. A subgroup of the new Board
renviewed its risk register to ensune it continues to meeat the Board's needs. HSE's strategic planning
team maintains regular contact with key personnel who directly manage particular risk issues and
provides suppon and advice as required,

HSE conducts reqular internal audits of the business risk system. The Audit Committes reviews
the organisation’s progress, in tems of embedding and improving business risk management, at
each meeling. The Corporate Risk Management Plan (CRMP) is a standing agenda item at each Audit
Committee meeting.

4 The risk and control framework

HSE's Risk Management Framework codifies its overall strategy for managing business risks.

It emphasises the nead for business risk managemant to ba integrated with the organisation's
management system to ensure that risks are managed effectively and proportionatety. it also defines
the key roles and responsibilities in the process.

The SMT comprisas senior managens in operations, policy, communications and corporate support,
Diractor of Chamicals Regulation Directorate together with the Chief Scientist, the Legal Advisar,
and the Chief Executive of HSL. Its role is to manage HSE's performance and any risks that threaten
achievernent of HSE's objectives. This includes taking co-ordinated decisions to ensure HSE remains
in & sound financial position, directing improved business efficiency and implemeanting programmes
of work to help achiesss DWP's DS0G. The Board meats formally monthly to make decisions albout
haailth and safety issues, policy, strategic finance and personnel matters and consider any significant
changes in business risk. It receives a formal performance and risk report quartesty, which combines
the performance report and the CEMP to draw the links betwean HSE's corporate-leved risks and thair
current (and potential) impact on performance. The Minister responsible for work-related health and
safaty (DWP's Pariamentary Under-Secretary in the Lords) recesves and considers the performance
and risk repart. The HSE Chair and Chief Executive meet the Minister reguiary to discuss a range of key
issues, including perdformance and risk on a quartery basis.

The CRMP sets out HSE's strategic risks and is the focus for business nisk management at
corporate level. SMT risk owners are responsible for ensuring adequate measures arg in place o
manage each risk, and for monitorng the adequacy of these measures. If needed, further control
measures are added. Each guarter, the SMT and the HSE Board formally review HSE's comporate
risks and direct further action as appropriate. SMT members have supplied the Accounting Officer with
letters of assurance which include an assessment of intermal controls within their commands.

The performance and risk report is complemented by a monthly finance and staffing paper, which
is & standing iter at SMT and HSE Board meetings. It provides a more detaided review of cument
financial and staffing out-turn and outlook information and an assessment of financial risk 1o support
strategic resource decisions.

Established corporate policies continua to contributa to an effactive control framework across
a range of risk areas, ncluding the health and safaty of HSE's own staff and contractors, human
resource matters, workforce strategy, planning. finance, accounting, procurement, information
technology, regularity and propriety and authorisation of expenditure. Guidance on related
arrangements is set out in codes and other instructions.
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H3E has taken steps to mprove the management of its information assets. These include the
appointment of the Deputy Chief Executive as its Senior Information Risk Manager, and the creation
of & forum that brings together key information asset owners to ad planning and the management of
information-related risk. A gap analysis on the range of actions required by central govemment has
been completed and priorities have been identified. Actions laken include: revising our information
assurance policies, producing updated risk assessments, briefing managers on their responsibilities
for improving information management standards, and providing practical suggestions to help secure
improved performance.,

The use of resources is delegated and agreed in writing from the Accounting Officer to those
indinvidual senior managers who are the main budget holders (MBHs). HSE's and HSL's budgels are
manitored as a whole and monthly reports provided to MBHs, the Finance Diractor, the Accounting 3
Oificer and the Board (and in furn to the Department and Treasury) based on the latest resource
out-tum and forecast information.

On 1 April 2008, the Pesticides Safety Directorate (PSD) transferred to HSE from the Department
fior Emvironment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra), and has been combinad with the Chemical
Aszessment Schemes Unit to form the Chemicals Regutation Directorate.

5 Review of effectiveness

Az Accounting Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. My review of this is informed by the work of the intermal auditors and managers within HSE
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework, and
comments made by the external auditors in their management ketter and other reports. | have been
advized on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of intemal
control by the SMT, the Audit Committes and the risk owners; a plan to address weaknesses and
anslre continuous improvement of the system is in placa.

HSE's Audit Commitiee, which comprises two Board members and two independent extarmal
mambers, met four times during 200802, During the year the Committee reviewed and updated its
terms of reference to ensure it operated in accordance with bast practice.

HSE's Internal Audit and Assurance Unit has direct access 1o the Accounting Officer and operates
to Government Internal Audit Standards. HSL has an internal audit function supplied by a private
sector auditor that also works 1o Government Intemal Audit Standards. Annual audit plans are risk
based and approved by the relevant audit commitiees, to whom Internal Audit makes regular repors.
All work undartaken is subject to inlemal quality asSUrANCS Processes,

For each assignment, Internal Audit provides an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
system of intemnal contrel and makes recommendations for improvement. Recommendations arising
from audits are followed up promptly to ensure that appropriate action is taken and iImprovements in
the risk management, governance and intemal control processes are achieved where necessary. The
Audit Committee actively monitors achievement of recommendation implementation.

At the end of the financial year, the Head of Internal Audit produces an annual report which is
presented (o the Audit Commitiee. This report summarises the work completed during the year and
identifies any significant issues which may impact upon the effectivensss of HSE's control environment
and which should be incorporated into this statement. An opinion on the adeguacy and effectiveness
of HSE's systems of intemal control is also provided.







HEE Accounts 2008/06

The Certificate and Report of the
Comptroller and Auditor General
to the Houses of Parliament

certify that | have audited the financial statements of the Health and Sataty Executive for the

year ended 31 March 2009 under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974, These comprise

the Operating Cost Statemeant, the Balanca Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and Staterment
of Recognised Gains and Losses and the related notes. These financial statemants have been
preparad under the accounting policies set out within them. | have also audited the information in the
Remuneration Report that is described in that report as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of the Executive, Chief Executive and
Auditor
The Executive, and Chief Executive as Accounting Officer, are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report, which includes the Remuneration Repart, and the financial staterments in accordance with the
Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and the Department for Work and Pensions” directions made
thereunder and for ensuring the regularity of financial transactions. These responsibilities are set out in
the Staterment of the Executive's and the Chief Executive's responsibilities,

My responsibility is 1o audit the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report
to be audited in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements, and with Intemational
Standards on Auditing (UK and Irelancd).

| repart to you my opinion as to whether the financial staterments give a true and fair view and
whether the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report ta be audited have been
property prepared n accordance with the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and the Department
for Wiork and Pensions' directions made thereunder, | report 10 you whether, in my opinion, cerain
information gevan in the Annual Report, which comprises the foreword, background information on
key activities, achievements during the vear, policy and belter regulation and corporate activities such
as science, rasearch and workdorca matters is consistent with the financial statemeants. | also repon
whether in all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended
by Parlizament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. In addition,
| report 1o you if the Executive has not kept proper accounting reconds, if | have not received all the
infomnation and explanations | require for my audit, or if information specified by HM Treasuny regarding
remuneration and other transactions is not disciosed.

| reniew whather the Statement on Internal Control reflects the Executive's compliance with HM
Treasury's guidance, and | report if it does not. | am not required to consider whether this stalement
covers all isks and contrals, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Executive's corporate
govenance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

| read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whather it is consistent
with the audited financial statements. | consder the implications for my repaort if | becomsa aware of any
apparant misstatermants or matenal inconsistencies with the financial statements. My responsibilities
do not extend to any other infarmation.

Basis of audit opinion

| concucted my audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued
by the Auditing Practices Board. My audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence ralevant
to the amounts, disclosures and regutarity of financial transactions included in the financial staterments

AT
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and the part of the Remuneration Raport to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the Executive and Accounting Officer in the preparation
of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are most appropriate 1o the
Executive’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

| planned and parformed my audit S0 as to obtain all the information and explanations which |
considered nacessany in order to provide me with sufficient evidence o give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are free from
material misstatemant, whether caused by fraud or emor, and that in all matenal respects the
expenditure and income have been applied 1o the purposes intended by Pariament and the financial
fransactions conform to the authorities which govern them. In forming my opinion | also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration Report to be audited.

Opinions

Audit opinion

I my oparian;

¥ the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with the Health and Safety a
Worlc etc Act 1974 and directions made thereunder by the Depariment for Work and Pansions, of
the state of the Executive’s affairs as at 31 March 2009 and of its nat operating cost, recognised
gains and losses and cash fiows for the year then ended;

¥ the financial statemants and the part of the Remunearation Report 10 be audited have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and the
Departmant for Work and Pensions' directions made thereunder; and

> informaticn given within the Annual Report, which comprises the foreword, background
information on key activities, achievements duning the year, policy and better regulation and
corporate activities such as science, research and workforce matiers is consistent with the
financial statements.

Audit opinion on regularify
In my opinion, n all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions confom 1o the authorities which goven them.

Report
| have no obsenvations to make on these financial statements.

Amyas C E Morse Comptrolier and Auditor General
Mational Audit Office

151 Buckingham Palace Road

Victoria, London SWIW 955

23 June 2009



HEE Acoounts 200809

Operating Cost Statement for
the year ended 31 March 2009

Rastated
2008/08 2007108
Motes £'000 £'000

Administration costs
Staff costs 3 163 781 161 424
Other administration costs 4 111 454 Q5 832
Gross administration costs 275 235 257 256
Operating income 6 (B4 350) (67 G25)
EU income ] (914) [B27)
Met administration costs 189 971 189 004

Pragramme cosls

Expenditure 5 38110 36 360
Less income Sand 6 (6 847) {10 243)
Met programme costs 29 263 28117
Net operating cost 219 234 215 121

All income and expenditure is derived from continuing cperations.

Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses for the year ended

31 March 2009
2008/09 2007/08
Motes £'000 £'000
Met gain/{loss) on revaluation of tangible fixed assets 14 (2 397) 3 290
Actuarial gain on pensions by analogy 12 147 (497)
Total recognised gains and losses for the financial vear (2 250) 3 893

There is no cumulaiive effect of the prior perod adjusiment on recognised gains and losses.,

The Motes on pages 57 to 83 form part of these accounts.
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Statement of accounting policies
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2008/09 Government Financial
Reporting Manual (FRel) (www.financial-reporting.gov.uk) issued by HM Treasury. The accounting
polcies contained n the FReh follow UK generally accepted accounting practice for companies
(UK GAAP) to the extant that it is meaningful and appropriate 1o the public seclorn

Where the FReM pemmits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to
be maost appropriate o the particular circumstancas of HSE, for the purposes of giving a true and fair
view, have been salecled, The particular accounting policies adopted by HSE are described below.
They have bean applied consistently in daaling with the items considered material in relation to the
accounts. The financial statements consolidate the figures for the Health and Salety Laboratory (HSL).

(a) Accounts Direction

In accordance with Accounts Directions issued by the Secretary of State with the approval of the
Treasury, the Health and Safety Executive has prepared a Statement of Responsibilities and Statement
on Internal Control. HSE has no need to produce Pardiamentary Control Schedules (the Statement of
Parliamentary Supply and the Statement of Resources by Departmental Aims and Objectivas) and the
relevant information is contained in those schedulas within DWP's accounts (sea Note 1(c)) with regard
to Request for Resouncas),

(b) Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the
revaluation of ficed assets (including the depreciated replacement cost of the specialist laboratory site
at Buxton) and stocks, whene matenal, at their value 1o the business by reference to their current costs,

(c) Government grants

Grants receivable
Pursuant to Section 43 of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974, the Executive has been
financed by a Request for Resources from the Departmant for Work and Pensions (Request for
Resources 2).

The total Request for Resources received by the Health and Safety Executive from DWP for the
financial year 2008/09 was £209 613 000 (2007/08 — £ 213 482 B88).

Tha Requast for Rescurces is credited to the General Fund in the year in which it is recened,

Grants payable
Granls payable are recorded as expenditure in the periodwhen the underying event or activity giving
entitlement to the grant has been completed.
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(d) Tangible fixed assets

Itama of equipment costing less than L2000 are charged to expenditure in the year of purchase,
axcapt for computer equipmeant costing over £500 but less than E2000 and items of fumilure costing
less than £2000 which are greuped for capitalisation by year of acquisition.

ltems of equipment purchased under research contracts and held by outside bodies are charged
to expenditure in the year of purchase.

Fixed assets are capitalized at cost of acquisition and installation.

The respective values of all freehold properties and only those leasshold properties that quality
as finance leases (refer accounting policy Mote 1(m)) are included in the Balanoe Sheet. Land and
buildings are valusd on an existing use basis except for the speacialist laboratary site at Buxton which
has been included at depreciated replacement cost.

Expenditure in respect of major capital refurbishment and improvement of properties occupied but
not owned by HSE is capitalised because the expenditure provides a long-term continuing benafit to
the arganisation.

Al land and building assets am assessed each year for tha likelihood of a matenal change in value
as at 31 March. Where the directors consider that it is likely that there has been a material change in
value, assets are revalued using a professional valuation or appropnate indices. All other assets are
revalued by reference to appropriate HM Treasury approved indices. Professional valuations, where
appropriate, are undertaken at least every five years, in accordance with the Freh and Financial
Reporting Standard (FRS15).

Jones Lang LaSalle professionally revalued all land and building assets on the Buxton site as at
31 March 2005, Additionally, the freehold property at Carliske was independently valued at 31 March
2008 by Donaldsons, Chartered Surveyors, In each casa, the valuations wera in accordance with tha
Appraisal and Valuation Standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

(e) Depreciation
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Depreciation is provided on all ather tangible fixed assats from the date of acquisition.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cument replacement cost eventy over its expected useful
life (less any estimated residual valus). Assets in the course of construction and residual intarests in
off-balance sheet Private Finance Initiative (PFI) contract assets are not depreciated until the asset is
brought into use or reveris to HSE respectively.
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(h) Stocks and work in progress

Stocks and work in progress ane valued as follows:

}» finished goods and priced goods for resale are valued at cost or, whara materialky different, cumment
replacement cost, and at net realisable value only when they either cannot or will not be used. The
cost of free publications is wnthan off i the year in which it is incumad;

¥ waork in progress is valued at the lower of cost, including appropriate overheads, and net realisable
valus; and

> consumable stores items are charged to the Operating Cost Statement on receipt.

(i) Foreign currency
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumencies ane translated into sterling at the exchange
rates presailing at the year end.

Transactions which are denominated in a foreign cumancy are translated into stering at the
exchangea rate ruling on the date of each transaction and translation differences are dealt with through
the Operating Cost Statemant.

(i) Research
Expenditure on research ks written off in the year in which it is incumed.

(k) Capital charge

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utiised by HSE, is included in operating costs. The charge

Is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasurny (currently 3.5%; 2007/08 - 3.5%) on the average
carying amounts of all assets less liabilities, except for cash balances with the Office of HM Paymastar
General, where the charge is nil.

(ll Pensions

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme
(PCSPS), details of which are described in Note 3. The defined benefit schemes anre unfundead and are
non-contributory except in respect of dependants’ benefits. HSE recognises the expected costs of these
elements on a systematic and rational basis over the period during which it benefits from employees’
serdces by payment to the PGSPS of amounts calculated on an acornuing basis. Liability for payment

of future banefits is a charge on the PCSPS. In respect of the defined conlribution schemes, HSE
recognises the contributions payable for the year. The cument Chair is not a member of the PCSPS but
a contribution of 25% of her salany s made to a stakeholder pension provider. Previous Chairs of the
Haalth and Safety Executive wene not members of the PCSFS but amangaments exist whereby HSE
makes pension payments analogous to these that would have been made if they had been members of
the PCSPS and are payable out of the cumrent year's funds that are made available. The appeiniment of
board members (other than the Chair) is nan-pensionabile.

S
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{m)Leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are bome by HSE, the assst
iz recorded as a tangible azset and a debt iz recorded to the lessor of the minimum leage payments
discounted by the interest rate implicit in the lease. Tha interest element of the finance lease payment
is charged to the Oparating Cost Statement over the period of the lease at a constant rate in relation
to the balance outstanding. Other leases are regarcled as operating leases and the rentals are
charged to the Operating Cost Statement on a siraight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(n) Administration and programme expenditure

The Operating Cost Staterment is analysed between administration and programme costs.
Adiministration costs refiect the costs of running the organisation as defined under the
administration cost-control regime, together with associated operating income. Incomea is
anahrsad in the notes between that which, under the regime, is allowed to be offset against
gross administrative costs in determining the out-turm against the administration cost limit, and
that operating incoma which is not. Programme costs reflect non-administration cosls, including
payments of grants and other disbursemants by the Executive.

(o) Private Finance Initiative {PFl) transactions
PFl transactions (refer to Mote 21) have been accounted for in accordance with Treasury Technical
Mote Mo, 1 ([Revised), entitied How to Account for PR ransactions as required by the Anancial
Raporfing Manual. Whera the balance of risk and rewards of ownership of the PFl asset are
bome by the PR operator, the PRl payments are recorded as an operating cost. Where HSE has
confributed assets, a prepayment for their fair valus s recognised and amortised over the life of the
PFl contract. Where at the end of the PFl contract an asset reverts to HSE, the difference between
the expected fair value of the residual assets on reversion and any agreed payment on reversion is
bt up over the life of the contract by capitalising part of the unitary charge each year.

Whara the balance of risks and rewards of ownership of the PFl asset are bome by HSE,
the asset is recognised as a fixed asset and the liability 1o pay for it is accounted for as a finance
lzase. Contract payments are apportioned betwean an imputed finance lease charge and a servica

charge.

(p) Provisions

HSE provides for legal or constructive obligations which ane of uncertain timing or amount at the
Balance Sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
chbligation. Whare the effect of the time valua of money is significant, the estimated nsk-adjusted
cash flows are discounted using the Treasury discount rate of 2.2% (2007/08 - 2.2%) in real terms.

61
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() Contingent liabilities
Disclosure conforms to FRS12, including discounting where the time valua of money is matenal,

(r) Value added tax

Most of HSE's activities are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and
input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Imecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure
category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or
input tax is recoverable, the amounts ane stated net of VAT,

(s) Operating income

Cperating income is income which relates directly to the operating activities of HSE. It principally
comprises fees and charges for services provided on a full cost basis to external customers. Operating
income is stated et of VAT,

(t) Financial instruments

HSE delermings the classification of financial assats and liabilities at initial recognition. They ane
deracognisad when the right to receive cash flows has expired or HSE has transferred substantiaihy all
the risks and rewands of ownership or control af the asset.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an actve market and wihich are not classified as available for sale. Loans and
recenables are initialy recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost. The fair value
of trade and other receivables is usually the original invoiced amoun.

The tair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an assat could be exchanged, or
a liabdity settled, in an arms-length transaction between knowledgeable willing parties. Where the
classification of a financial mstrument requines it to be stated at fair value, fair value s determned usng
expected cash flows discounted back to a present value.

Cash at bank and in hand comprises cash in hand and current balances with banks and similar
institutions, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o
ingignificant changes in value. For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash at bank
and in hand is as defined above net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafis are included
within current iabiities on the balance sheeat.

HSE assasses al each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that financial
assets are impaired as a result of one or more lass events that ocoumed after the imitial recognition of
the asset and prior to the balance sheet date and whether such events have had an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument and can be relfiably estimated.

Interest determingd, impairmeant losses and translaton differences on monetary items ang
recognised in the Operating Cost Statemeant,

-
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3 Staff numbers and costs of the Health and Safety Executive

(a) Staff costs

Restated
2008/09 2007/08

Staff with a Other staff

permanant engaged on the
UK contract  objectives of HSE Total Total
£°000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 125 491 3783 128 284 126 581
Social security costs 9 T45 a8 8783 10 161
Other pension costs 25413 81 25 494 25 648
Total 160 649 3912 164 561 162 330
Lass recoveries in raspect (780) - (TE0) [966)

of cutward secondments

Total net costs 159 BE9 a2 163 781 1681 424

The Principal Civil Service Fension Scheme (PCSPS) is an unfunded multi-employer defined benefit
scheme but HSE is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The schamea
actuary valued the scheme as at 31 March 2007. You can find details in the resource accounts of the
Cabinet Office; Chwi superannuation (waw.civilsanvice-pensions.gov.uk).

For 2008/09 emplovers contributions of £25.2 million were payable 1o the PCSPS (200708 -
£24.4 milion) at one of the four rates in the range 17.1 o 25.5% of pensionable pay (200708 -17.1
to 25.5%), based on salary bands. The schema’s actuany reviews employer contributions usually
every four yvaars following a full scheme valuation. From 200910, the rates will be in the ranga 16.7 to
24.3%. The contribution rates are set to meet the costs of the benefits accruing during 2008/09 to be
paid when the member retires, and not the benafitas paid dunng this penod to existing pensoners.

Employees can opt to open a partnership pension account, a stakeholder pension with an
employer confribution. Emplover's contributions of £89 881 (2007 /08 - £42 356) were paid to one
or more of a panel of three appointed stakeholder pension providers. Employer contributions are age
related and range from 3 to 12.5% of pensionable pay. Employers also match employee contributions
up to 3% of pensionable pay. In addition, employver contibutions of £3650, 0.8% of pensionable pay,
weare payable o the PCSPS to cover the cost of the future provision of lump sum payments on death
in sarvice and ill-health retirement of these employees.

Contributions due ta the partnership pension providers at the balance shest date were E7797.

Eight pecple retired early on ili-health grounds (2007/08 - three people); the total additional
accrued pension kabilties in the year amounted to £14 388 (2007/08 - £16 470). These liabiities are
not the responsibility of HSE but are 1o be paid by the Civil Superannuation Vote.
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(b) The average number of whole-time equivalent persons employed during the year

Restated
2008/09 2007/08
Other staff
Permanently engaged on the
employed staff objectives of HSE Total Total
3514 GB 3 582 3670
4 Other administration costs
Hestated
2008/09 200708
£'000 £'000
Rentals under operating leases
Hire:of plant and machinery 23 17
Operating leases 8225 B 474
PFl service charges
Off-balance sheet contracts 22 606 22 720
On-balance sheet PRl contracts 3437 3 303
Interast charges — On-balance sheet PFl contracts 5782 b 656
Auditor's remuneration 128 g
Non-cash items
Auditor's remuneration (PSD) - 26
PFl on-balance shaet contracts = amonisation of prepayment 153 153
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets & 022 & 861
Cost of capital charge 1288 1 0an
Impairment of fixed assets as 2 2]
(Profit)ioss on disposal of fixved assets 115 18
Provisions: provided in yaar 4 518 665
Unwinding of discount on provisions 76 31
Cther non-cash items (227) 1150
Other expenditure o7 272 45 434

111 454 a5 832

65
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6 Income

The activities of the Executive include certain chargeable senices, each of which is subject to a financial
objective of full cost recovery. Memaorandum Trading Accounts are prepared where the cost of a
paricular senice exceads 100 000. The charges for thesa activities, which are exclusive of VAT, include
provision for the recovery of notional inlerest.

Restated

2008/09 2007/08

Surplus/ Surplus/

Cost Income (deficit) (deficit)
£'000  £'000 £'000 £°000

(i) HSE fees and charges

Licansing of nuclear installations 28341 2834 -
Safety-refated research in the nuclear industry 429 429 -

Civil nuclear security 3267 3267 -

Generic Design Assessment 5124 5124 - :
Senelically modified organisms 139 144 5 37
First-aid approvals 329 228 (101) (55)
Asbestos licensing 453 409 {44) (10)
FEPA fees and levy 678 480 (198) -
Authorisalion of biocides and pesticides (non-agricutural) 1 449 920 (529) 55
Authonisation of agricuttural pesticides 11855 12006 151 110
Motifcation of naw substances = = - 40
Control of major accident hazards 8401 7721 (680) {250)
Enforcemant of offshore safaty legislation 12676 11280 (1.396) (23]
Enforcement of Gas Safety (Management) Regulations 431 459 28 {42)
Total HSE fees and charges 73572 70808 (2764) (208)
Health and Safety Laboratory external customers T425 T425 - .
Health and Safety Laboratory EL income 235 235 - .
Other fees and agency charges - 115 = -
Total HSL income TE60 TI75 - -
Total fees and charges at 31 March 2009 81 232 78583 - -

Total fees and chargas at 31 March 2008 (restated) 66 823 66 523
(i) HSE sales and other income

Sale of publications 2138 3177 1 041 1074
Other salesfincome - 8672 - -
ELl income = 679 - -
Total sales and other income at 31 March 2009 2136 132528 - -

Total sales and other income at 31 March 2008 (restated) 2 748 11 872 - -

This analysis |s provided for fees and charges purposes and is not intended 10 comply with SSAP 25
Segmental Reporting.
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7 Assets

(a) Tangible fixed assets

Payments on
Leasehold Fumiture  account and
Land and  improve- Information Motor  Plant and and assets under
buildings ments  technology  vehicles  machinery fithings  construction Total
£°000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £°000 £'000
Cost or valuation at BB 417 21769 6 039 3334 14 750 12 601 1381 128291
1 April 2008 [rastated)
Reclassifications (cost) - 654 - - 12 - (6E6) 0
Additions in year 197 5 BBOD 662 a62 895 638 390 9531
Revaluations in year {2 966) - (50) 209 102 265 0 (2 440)
Disposals during year - (8 261)* (2 76T) (968]) (213) (276) - (12 485)
Balance at 65 648 20042 38: 3 437 15 546 13 228 1105 122897
31 March 2009
Depreciation at 1 April 4075 14 527 5 026 1250 10 155 5 H66 - 40529
2008 (restatad)
Charge in year 1214 3299 518 516 ae8 a9 - 7 426
Revaluations in year (248) - (20 T0 74 116 - (8]
Disposals during year - (8 261)= (2 TEE) (556) (200) (223) - {12 008)
Accumulated 5041 9 565 2758 1 280 107 6 450 = 36011
depreciation at
31 March 2009
Met book value at 60 607 10 477 1133 2157 4 629 6778 1105 86 BBE
31 March 2009
Met book value at Gd 342 T 242 1013 2 084 4 595 7 035 1 381 BT 692
31 March 2008
(restated)
Azsat financing
Cwned 4 904 10477 1133 2 157 4 629 4 261 as0 27 951
Finance leased = = E = = = z =
On-balance sheat 55 703 - - = = 2517 - 58220
PFl contracts
PFI resicual interests - - = - - - 715 715
MNet book value at 60 607 10477 1133 2 157 4 629 6778 1105 BE BBE
31 March 2009

a Relates lo the write off of brought forwand cosis and depreciation in respect of leasehold improvamant schames, completad in previous
years, and proviously stated al nil net book value.

Depreciation charged in the year on assets under the HSL PFI contract was £1.143 million (2007/08 - £1.078 million).
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(b) Intra-government balances
Restatad
2008/09 Z007/08 2008/09 200708
Amounts fafling due  Amounts faling dus

within one year after ane year
£'000 £000 £000 £'000

Balances with other ceniral govemnment bodies 3 Be2 & 580 -
Balances with [ocal authorities 241 258 - -
Balances with NHS trusts 34 180 - .
Balances with public corporations and frading funds 5420 4768 = =
Subtotal: intra-government balances 9557 11786 - -
Balances with bodies external to govemment 21185 17735 3942 4 041
Total debtors at 31 March 3072 29521 3 942 41041

10 Cash at bank and in hand
Restated
2008/09 2007/08
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 233 1413
Met change in cash balances (5 963) {1 180)
Balance at 31 March (5 730) 233
Less Office of HM Paymaster General balance in creditors 5923 -
Balance per balance sheet 1493 233
The following balances at 31 March are held at

Cfice of HM Paymaster General (5 923) 161
Commercial banks and cash in hand 193 72
(5 730) 233

The credit balance (£5 730 000) relates to transactions posted at Office of HW Paymaster
General after the defunding of HSE's account on 31 March 2008 in accordance with DWF's cash
management arrangaments agreed with HWM Treasury,
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11 Creditors
(a) Analysis by type
Restated
2008/09 2007 /08
£'000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Oither taxation and social security 3 286 3226
Superannuation 238 2331
Trade creditors: non capital 665 1085
Trade creditors: capital 369 278
Oither creditors 178 276
Accruals and defarmed income 18 263 13374
Balance with Office of HM Paymaster General 5923 -
Provisions reclassified as creditors 1520
32 585 20 580
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Imputed finance lgase element of on-balance 61 582 G0 870
sheat PFl contracts
Other creditors 2313 2974
Provisions reclassified as creditors 2329 -
66 224 B3 844
Total 98 809 84 424
(b) Intra-government balances
Restated
2008/09 200708 2008/09 200708
Amounts falling due Amounts falling due
within one year after one year
£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Balances with other central 6720 7 026 -
govarnment bodies
Balances with local authorities az 11 -
Balances with NHS trusts 24 az -
Balances with public corporations 684 1 248 -
and trading funds
Subtotal: intra-government balances 7 460 8 387 -
Balances with bodies extemal to government 25 125 12 213 66 224 63 844
 Total creditors at 31 March 32 585 20 580 66 224 63 844
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T4

12 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Early Chair's Pension
departure costs Dilapidations by analogy  Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 2008 2 255 BH5 1417 278 4 G0G
INCrease in provision 49 481 70 67 4 637
Frovisions not required - (107 (147) 12) (266)
wntten back
Amourts utiised {2 501} (615) (200) (150) (3 466)
Urwinding of discount 76 - - - TG
Armounts reclassified as {3 849) - - - (2 849)
financial labdities
Balance at 31 March 2009 0 414 1140 184 1738

Early departure costs

HSE meets the additional costs of benefits beyvond the normal PCSPS benefits in respect of
emplovees whao retire earty by paying the required amounts annually to PCSPS over the period
baetween early depariure and normal retirement date. HSE provides for this in full when the earhy
retirement programme becomeas binding on HSE by establishing a provision for the estimated
paymants discounted by the Treasury discount rate of 2.2% in real terms.

A number of voluntary early release schames were agreed in 2008/09, mainhy on fexible aarly
retirement/severance terms, for eligible staff based in London HQ., These schemes were in the scope
of the projact to relocate posts to Merseyside HCL

The balance of this provision has been reclassified as financial liabiities in accordance with the
Financial Instruments Standard.

Legal claims
Provision has been made for vanious legal claims against HSE. The provision (which is included in
‘other’) reflects all known claims where legal advice indicates that it is more than 50% probable that
the claim will be successiul and the amcunt of the claim can be reliably estimated. Mo reimbursament
will be received in respect of any of these claims.

Legal claims which may succeed but ane less likely to do 50 or cannot be refiably estimated ara
disclosed as contingent liabilities in Mole 22.
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15 Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

Restated
2008/09 200708
Motes £'000 £'000
(a) Reconciliation of operating cost to operating cash flows
Met operating cost (219234) (215 121)
Ackust for non-cash transactions 13 980 10100
(Increase)/decrease in stock 8 (110) 179
(Increaseldecrease in debtors 2] (1102) (8:35)
Less movements in debtors not through T4 (F03)
Operating Cost Statement
Increase/{decreasea) in creditors 11 8 462 (553}
Less movements in creditors not through (1 328) (70S5)
Operating Cost Statement
Provisions reclassified as creditors (2 B49) -
Interest element of inance lease payment = 815
Use of provisions 12 (3 466) (2 128)
Met cash outfiow from operating activities (206 573) (208 951)
(b) Analysis of capital expenditure and financial investment
Tangible fixed asset addiions (8 6a5) {5 495)
Intangible fixed asset additions {F20) (315)
Proceeds of disposal of fixed assets 364 403
Met cash outhow from invesiing actvimes (9 001) 1o 407)
(c) Analysis of financing and reconciliation to the net cash requirement
From DWEP 209613 217 592
Retumed to Defra - 4 110)
Decrease/increase) in cash 5963 1180
Adjustment for payments and recaipts not related 1o supply = =
Amounts due to DWP
- received in a prior year and paid over - (303)
— receved and not paid over = =
Met cash requirement 215576 214 358

16 Capital commitments
2008/09 2007/08

E'000 £'000

Contracted commitments for which no provision has been made 1516 259

£1.5 million contracted commitments includes £1.1 milkon in respect of a coniract to construct HSLs
new incident material stora.
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17 Losses and special payments

Restated Restated

2008/09 200708 2008/09 200708

Mo. of cases Mo. of cases £'000 £°000

Cash 27 T 22 12

Claims abandoned 175 164 173 2 5]
Administrative losses 0 c 0

Fruitiess payments 25 3 T 10

Stores 1 1 22 s

Special payments 18 18 225 57

246 221 449 253

Special payments made by HSE to staff and members of the public totaied 18 cases in 2008104 1o

Iha value of £235 325,

18 Commitments under non-PFl operating leases

At 31 March 2008 HSE was committed to making the following payments during the next year,
analysed according to the period in which the lease expires:

Restated
2008/09 200708

Land and Land and
buildings Other buikdings Other
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Leases expinng within

One year 307 2 134 G
After one year but not more than five years 231 3 173 fid
Miore than five years 8473 - 8913 -
11 091 5 10 778 13

19 Commitments under non-PFl finance leases

HSE does not currently have any obligations under non-PFl finance leases.
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20 Related party transactions
Tha Heallh and Safety Executive is an Executive Non-Departmental Public Body with Crown status
and i sponsonad by DWE

DWP'is regarced as a related party. During the year, HSE had several transactions with DWP that
mainky related to the provision of pension senvices and premises costs, HSE did not have material
iransactions with olher entities for which the OWP is regarded as the parent department.

In addition, HSE had a number of matenal transactions with other govemment departments
and other central government bodies, The significant transactions have baen with the Chal Nucksar
Constabulary, Crown Prosecution Senvice, Depariment for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs,
Departmant of Health, Department for Transpon, Depariment for Business, Enterprise and Ragulatory
Reformn, Health Protection Agency, Home Office, Ministry of Defence, Ministey of Justice, National Schoal
of Government, Offica for Mational Statistics, Office of the Rail Regulator, Treasury Solicitor,
LIk Atomic Energy Authority [UKAEA) Fusion and Welsh Assambly Government, Transactions maindy
relate to premises, research, training, computer, legal senvices and administrative expenditure together
with redavant income from the provision of health and salety advice and services, None of the Executive
mambars, the Chief Executive or senior managers, ar any parson connected with these, had any interest
in any material transactions with HSE or received benefits from HSE suppliers during the year.

21 Commitments under PFI contracts

Off-balance sheet

HSE has entered into two contracts let under tha Private Finance Initiative that have been assessed
under FRS5 as being off HSE's balance sheet. The intention of the contracts is that the majority of
the risks are transferred to the parly best able to manage them and in these cases this is the private
seclor supplier

Merseyside Headquarters (Redgrave Court)

HSE has signed a 30-year contract with Kagma Development [Boolle Accommedation Partnerships) Lid
for the provision of fully seniced accommaodation in Bootle, Merseyside. The contract nuns from May
2005 1o May 2035, The estimated capital value of the contract is £60 million.

IT services

HSE has streamiined the management of its IT senvice by placing all of its IT services with a single
strategic partner who has responsibiity for delivery and end-to-end senvice. In June 2001, HSE signed
a ten-year contract with a pariner (LogicaCMG with Computacenter as the key subcontractor] for the
provision of information and communications technology (ICT) and inforrmation strategy (1S) sendce
across all HSE sites and to all HSE users. The estimated capital value of the contract is £26.5 million.
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Charge to the Operating Cost Statement and future commitments

The total amount charged in the Operating Cost Statemeant in respect of off-balance shast PF
transactions was £22 605 701 (2007/08 - £22 719 666), and the payments to which HSE is
committed during 200910, analysed by the perod during which the commitment expires, ars as
follows:

2009/10 2008/09
£'000 £'000

Expiry within 1 year - -
Expiry within 2 to 5 years 15 526 15 802
Expiry within & to 10 years - .
Expiry within 11 to 15 years -

Expiry within 16 to 20 years -

Expiry within 21 to 25 yvears - -
Expiry within 26 to 30 years T 870 & 399

On-balance sheet

With effect from 28 October 2004, HSL took occupation of seniced accommocdation for laboratony
and support functions provicied under a 30-year contract with Investors in the Community (Busdton)
(ICB) Ltd.

The ransactions ansing out of this contract have been accounted for in accordance with Technical
Mote no. 1 (Revisaed), entitted How to Account for BRI Transactions as required by the FReM. As the
belance of the risks and rewards of ownership of the PRI property is borne by HSL, rather than the PFI
provader, ICB Lid, the buildings and furniture provided under the contract are included in H5Ls balance
sheet as fived assets. The liability to pay for these assets is in substance a finance lease obligation.
Contractual payments compnse an imputed finance lease charge and a senice charge.

As part of the P contract, HSL handed over all of the land and buildings at the Sheffield site
to 108 Lid, and a prepayment for their fair value of £4.6 million, as determined by the conlract, is
recognisad in the accounts and amodised evanty over the [ife of the PRl contract.

The Accownts are prepared on the basis that the economic effect of granting a lease at Buxton
to ICB Lid is not matenal because the difference between the existing usa value of the freebold land
al Buxton as at 31 March 2009 and the valus of the reversionary interest in the freehold land as at
October 2034 is not significant, given the location of, and potential uses for, the Buxton site.

S .
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Imputed finance lease obligations under on-balance sheet PR contracts comprises:

200810 2008/08

E'000 £'000

Rentals due withan 1 year 2175 o 0es
Rentals due after 1 but within 2 years 5 204 5085
Rentals due after 2 years but within 5 years 16 690 16 283
Rentals due after 5 years but within 10 vears 31 576 a0 627
Rentals dug after 10 vears but within 15 years 36133 35 169
Rentals due after 15 yiears but within 20 years 41 096 40 045
Rentals due after 20 years but within 25 years 46 686 45 547
Rentals dua after 25 years but within 30 years 5712 15517
Subtotal 188 344 193 342
Less interest alement (126 T62) (132 472
Total 61 672 60 870

Charge to the Operating Cost Statement and future commitments

The total amount charged to HSL's Income and Expenditure account in respact of the senvice elemant
of on-balance sheet PFl transactions was £3 580 809, (2007/08 - £3 455 847), both figures adjusted
to include releaze of prepayment of £153 400, and, subject to ICE Ltd achieving contracted levels

of service and availability, the value of the payments 1o which HSL is committed in respect of the
following financial year is:

Restated ®

200910 200800

£'000 £'000

Expiry within 26 to 30 years 3444 3439

a Rastated to exclude the prepayment alamant, far wihich no commitmeant 1o reody exisrs.

22 Contingent liabilities

HSE is curnanthy dafending two equal-pay cases (Cadman and Wison). In October 2003, HSE

successiully appeated to the Employment Appeal Tribunal against an Employment Tribunal decision in

the case of Cadman handed downiin July 2002, That appeal was subject to cross appeal and in Octobar

2004 the Court of Appeal referred a point of law to the European Court of Justice [ECJ). The ECJ

Judgment was handed down in Oclober 2008, following which the Court of Appeal remitied the case

back to the Employment Tribunal for a rehearing. No date has yel been fixed for Cadman to be reheard,
Mearwhila, the ‘sister” case of Wikson which had been stayed before the Employment Appeal

Tribunal pending the cutcome of the Cadman case in the ECJ was remitted to the Employmant Trbunal

sitting at Shrewsbury. The Employment Tribunal applying the ECJ decision in the Cadman case found in
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